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DAN SIEGEL, SBN 56400

JOSE LUIS FUENTES, SBN 192236
SIEGEL & YEE

499 14th St, Suite 220

QOakland, California 94612
Telephone: (510) 839-1200
Facsimile: (510) 444-6698

Attorneys for Subpoenaed Party

JOSHUA WOLF
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Inre GRAND JURY SUBPOENA

dated February 1, 2006. NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO
STAY AND QUASH SUBPEONA AND

_ , ) SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM; o

JOSHUA WOLF, = S . SUPPORTING DECLARATION OF JOSE

LUIS FUENTES
Subpoenaed Party. »

Date: February 16, 2006
Time: 9:30 a.m.
Courtroom:

TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, U.S. ATTORNEY KEVIN V. RYAN,
AND ASSISTANT U.S. ATTORNEY JEFFREY FINIGAN:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on a date and time to be set by the Court, subpoenaed
party Joshua Wolf will and hereby does move for an order quashing the subpoena and subpoena
duces tecum 1ssued IN THIS MATTER.

This motion is made on the following grounds: (1) the subpoenas are being used
improperly in connectipn with state pending criminal cases and investigation; (2) compelling the
production of documents under the subpoena duces tecum would violate Mr. Wolf’s First
Amendment rights and the Government cannot meet the burdens compelled by Branzburg v.

Hayes, 408 1J.S. 665 (1972) and related authority; (3) pursuant to Rule 17(c) compliance with
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the subpoena would be unreasonable or oppressive and would violate Petitioners” rights under
the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States. As a result, the
witness’ appearance would be futile for the United States, a waste of the grand jury’s time,
harassment of Mr. Wolf, and a misuse of the grand jury process.

Additionally, Mr. Wolf respectfully requests that the Court stay any grand jury
appearance pending the resolution of this Motion.

This motion is based on this notice of motion and motion, the attached memorandum of
points and authorities, any reply which will be filed, all exhibits thereto, files and records in this
case, and any further evidence which may be presented at the hearing,

Respectfully Submitted,

Dated: February 15, 2006

DAN SIEGEL
JOSE LUIS FUENTES
SIEGEL & YEE

Attorneys for Joshua Wolf
‘Subpoenaed Party

By:
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_Special Agent Scott A. Merriam thereafter informed Ms. Militello that the FBI \ifould be

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORI
Movant, by counsel Jose Luis Fuentes, submits this Memorandum of Law in Support of

his Motion to Quash a federal grand jury subpoena and subpoena duces tecum.

I. INTRODUCTION

The federal government has subpoenaed video footage shot by Joshua Wolf, a journalist
and videographer, related to a July 8, 2005, protest in San Francisco against the G8 Summit then
taking place in Perthshire, Scotland. During the protest, a San Francisco police officer received a
serious head injury after he violently rushed into a crowd of protesters wielding his baton,
without backup and contrary to departmental procedures and guidelines, and was struck on the
head from behind while punching a suspect. As a result, the San Francisco Police Department
(“SFPD™) initiated an investigation, led by Inspector Lea W, Milite]fo, and local charges are
pending against three people in connection with the incident. Records show that Inspector

Militello solicited the help of the FBI's Joint Terrorism Task Force (“JTTF”), and that FBI

“assisting’’.

The subpoen.a vi.o]ates_Rule 6 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Pfocedure because it seeks
to convert the grand jury, an arm of the judiciary, into a tool of the executive to assist in a local
criminal prosecution and investigation. In addition, the subpoena, which appears to target people
based on their political identification and association, and which comes at a time when the FBI is
showing increasing, political preoccupation with “anarchists™ writ large — a broad, divergent, and
variegated (non) group of people across the country — raises the specter of infringement of First
Amendment rights, and a return to the pre-Church Committee witch hunts of the FBL.

Since the federal government has no jurisdiction in the first place, the subpoena is also
violative of the California Shield law (Art. I, §. 2(b) of the California Constitution and Evidence

i

"

i

s

2

MOTION TO QUASH GRAND JURY SUBPOENA



[

Code § 1070), which protects journalists from being compelled to divulge “the source of any
information” and any “unpublished information™"

11. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

On February 4, 2006, the FBI served a subpoena on Joshua Wolf demanding “All
documents, writings and recordings related to protest activities conducted in San Francisco,
California, on July 8, 2003, between the hours of 6:30 p.m. and 11:59 p.m.” The subpoena, a
copy of which 1s attached as Exhibit A, Subpoena Duces Tecum to Joshua Wolf and
incorporated by reference, also demands “each camera, video recorder, audio recoding device
or other hardware or equipment used fo record any part of the above described events of July 8§,
2005™.

On July 8, 2005, according to the SFPD’s own version of events, two San Francisco
police officers attempted to drive their vehicle through a group of marchers in San Francisco’s
Mission District, following reports of vandalism, when someone dropped a piece of foam.under

the tire of the pohce car, whereupon Ofﬁcer #l jumped out to chase and arrest him.- He said he

: heard fireworks. (Video posted on the mternet corroborates that people were li ghtmg ﬁreworks

in the street dunng the march.) Officer #2 reported that someone pointed a pyrotechmc device”
at him or the car (the SFPD’s reports are inconsistent), and he jumped out to chase that person,
wielding his baton at people in the crowd along the way. The officers each used force to subdue

their suspects. Officer #1 reported using a carotid restraint, to cries from the crowd that he was

! Art. 1, § 2(b) of the California Constitution, and Evidence Code § 1070(a) provide
identicaily, in pertinent part:

A publisher, editor, reporter, or other person connected with or employed upon a
newspaper, tnagazine, or other periodical publication, or by a press association or
wire service, or any person who has been so connected or employed, cannot be
adjudged in contempt by a judicial, legislative, administrative body, or any other
body having the power to issue subpoenas, for refusing to disclose, in any
proceeding as defined in Section 901, the source of any information procured
while so connected or employed for publication in a newspaper, magazine or
other periodical publication, or for refusing to disclose any unpublished
information obtatned or prepared in gathering, receiving or processing of
information for communication to the public.
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choking the suspect, and Officer #2 repurled punching his suspect in the arms and legs. During
this time, witnesses report that someone came out of the crowd and hit Officer #2 over the head
with some kind of stick. The injured officer was reportedly assisted by a legal observer and
civilian medic, until fellow officers and paramedics tended to him, other officers showing and
pointing guns in people’s faces and shoving those trying to assist out of the way. The injured
officer suffered a three inch laceration to his scalp. He was kept for observation, and discharged
from the hospital two days later, on July 10, 2004. (See Exhibits B, SFPD incident reports
related to July 8, 2005 incident, and D, SFPD Investigator’s Chronology — SFPD Incident
Reports and Investigator’s Chronology, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Following the incident, SFPD Field Operations Commander Greg Suhr was reprimanded
by the Department for failing to continue to déploy the tactical squad to follow the marchers (the
squad had stood down). He transferred out of the Department, and has reportedly taken a high

level security position with the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, asserting that the

|move was long planned and. unrelated to the incident.. -

The SFPD ‘initiatéd.an invésti ga'tior.l, led by Inspector Lea W; Militello, ‘and local chmges
afe pending against three people in connection wifh the incident: the individﬁa] accused of |
putting the foam in front of the police car (preliminary hearing scheduled for March 1, 2006),
and two observers, charged with misdemeanors and accused of interfering. They are charged in
San Francisco Superior Court.

Records show that Inspector Militello solicited the help of the FBI's Joint Terrorism Task
Force, and that FBI Special Agent Scott A. Merriam thereafter informed Ms. Militello that the
FBI would be “assisting”, on the pretext that someone had attempted an arson on a police vehicle
(Exhibit C, SFPD Inspector Lea Militello’s request for assistance from FBI Joint Terrorism Task
Force, hereby incorporated by reference). Visits by the FBI and SFPD and this subpoena

followed.

? The pretext is concocted. On information and belief, there was no attempted arson.
Marchers dropped a piece of foam they were carrying for a sign when the police officers began
trying to drive through the march. A firecracker ignited it, and it smoldered but did not burn.
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111. ARGUMENT
A. THE GOVERNMENT HAS NO JURISDICTION TO INVESTIGATE THIS

LOCAL MATTER, AND ITS PURPOSE IN “ASSISTING” LOCAL LAW
ENFORCEMENT IS A MISUSE OF THE FEDERAIL GRAND JURY

The federal government has no discernible jurisdiction to be investigating this matter, as
the events do not appear to transgress any federal criminal law. This is a purely local event,
which the SFPD is more than capable of handling, and is handling — notwithstanding Inspector
Militello’s unfounded request for assistance from the JTTF (Exhibits C).3 While the movant in
no way stipulates to the propriety of any local grand jury subpoena, it is worth noting that the
San Francisco District Attorney’s Office has recourse to grand jury proceedings. However,
under California shield law, Mr. Wolf has almost absolute immunity to refuse to surrender

unpublished information sought by the prosecutor. Miller v. Superior Court 21 Cal.4" 883, 887

(1999). as well, if it should choose to avail itself of such a took. It thus appears that San
Franciéco Pblfce and‘tl.le FBf afe trying to do an enﬁ un éround theée rules. -

The federal government may nbt use the grand jury to “aséist” local law enforcement (the
word used by the SFPD to describe the FBI’s involvement (Exhibits C and D) — as Rule 6 of the
Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure strictly prohibits the federal government from divulging
information derived from grand jury proceedings to state or local authorities, unless it can show

that this 15 necessary to enforce federal criminal law. In Re Grand Jury Subpoenas served upon

Edward Kiefaber, et al., 774 F.2d 969 (9" Cir. 1985) {quashing grand jury subpoenas as sanction

for Government’s disclosure of grand jury materials to local law enforcement agencies).
Thus not only is there no predicate, but there is no legal benefit to using the grand jury in
this manner. The subpoena should be quashed on these grounds alone. At the very least, the

Court should require the government to disclose the subject of its investigation, and thereafter

? While Inspector Militello documented her request for assistance to the FBI’s Joint
Terrorism Task Force (Exhibit B), the genesis of the agreement, and who initiated it, 1s not
known.
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hold an evidentiary hearing to determine whether there is a predicate for the subpoena See

United States v. R. Enterprises. Inc., 498 U.S. at 30 1-302 (recognizing that upon a preliminary

showing of the unreasonableness of a subpoena, the government should be required to reveal the
subject of the grand jury investigation before the movant is put to his/her burden in a motion to
quash). “After all, a subpoena recipient ‘cannot put his whole life before the court in order to

show that there 1s no crime to be investigated.” U.S. v. R. Enterprises, 498 U.S. 292, 302-203

(1991), quoting Marston’s, Inc. v. Strand, 114 Ariz. 260, 270, 560 P.2d 778, 788 (1977).”
B. THE SUBPOENA INFRINGES MR. WOLF’S FIRST AMENDMENT
RIGHTS OF FREE EXPRESSION AND ASSOCIATION

Absent any legitimate basis for involvement, the federal government’s very involvement
1n this local matter — coming at a time when the national police have begun talking about
anarchism the way the FBI used to talk about Communism — raises the specter of broad political
repression, and the rerun of a very bad old movie.

Only several weeks ago, FBI Special Agent Nasson Walker drafted an affidavit in
suﬁpt;rf ofa cémp]aintr aﬁd arrest of three ydung, alleged, wou]d—bé eco—'éabo’té’ur‘é n Au’bﬁm '
(Sacramento-County), which reads like ;1 tract against anarchism. (Exhibit E, Affidavit by FBI
Special Agent Nasson Walker, hereby incorporated by refere.nce.)‘ His affidavit irrelevantly
references “anarchist” or “anarchism™ 26 times in its mere 14 pages. The Agent [to wit, the FBI]
appears obsessed with the anarchist “lifestyle”, anarchist literature, and anarchist gatherings.
The FBI has revealed that it embedded a 20 year old paid informant with the suspects, apparently
recruited when she was only 18 or 19. The FBI dressed her up as a medic, and dispatched her to
participate in protests around the country.

Of course, there is no such thing as an anarchist movement, or anarchist agenda, and any
two people who self-identify as anarchists are probably more likely to disagree on history,
philosophy, social organization, or political strategy than any two people who identify as
Christian, Muslim, Republican, or Democrat. Invocations of dread anarchism add nothing more
to the indicia of probable cause recited in Agent Walker’s affidavit than if all the terms were

replaced with the word “Christian™ — and no one can gainsay that Christians have committed far
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more atrocities in history than anarchists. It is axiomatic in this country that people are not guilty
by mere association to unpopular individuals, groups, ideas, or suspected criminals. Anarchists
occupy all positions in society. Professor Noam Chomsky is one. This undoubtedly is of little
consolation to the current Administration, but that is all they should have to say about it. George
Orwell was one too.

Based on information and belief, during the week of July 11, 2005, Lea W. Militello,
Suzanne G. Solomon, and Scott A. Merriam visited Joshua Wolf’s residence, and interviewed
himn for about an hour and a half. They asked Mr. Wolf if he makes it a habit to document
anarchist protests. They wanted information on “Anarchist Action,” such as who they are and
what their mission is. The SFPD’s incident reports and investigative documents likewise reveal
genera]izatiohs about anarchists and anarchism. (Exhibits B and D).

On the face of it, the federal government is doing nothing more (or less) than trying to
exploit an unfortunate, local incident in order to chill the free expression and association of
activists who part1c1pate in demonstrations like the JuIy 8, 2005 protest agamst the G8 Sumrmt
many of whom apparently espouse anarchlst behefs (such as local autonomy, mdl genous ri ghts
freedom from government oppression and state terrorism, living with a small ecological
footprint, and serving one another through acts of kindness and mutual support). It is readily
apparent that the FBI is engaged in an illegal, full field investigation of anarchists and anarchism,
and if the Court has any doubt as to this, then it should hold an evidentiary hearing to inquire into
it. This assertion is based not only on the evidence at hand in this case, and the lack of any other
predicate for FBI involvement, but on the sordid history of the federal government’s misuse of
the grand jury system to harass members of reviled groups or political ideologies, and the FBI’s
long and sordid history of attempting to “expose, disrupt, misdirect, discredit, or otherwise

neutralize” unpopular groups and individuals, in J. Edgar Hoover’s infamous words.*

* COINTELPRO last reared its ugly head in the Bay Area, as far as anyone knows, when
the FBI attempted to frame environmental activists Judi Bari and Darry] Cherney by accusing
them of transporting a car bomb which was obviously placed by an attempted assassin under Ms.
Bart’s car seat. In 2002, a federal jury in San Francisco awarded plaintiffs in the ensuing civil
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The grand jury system is enshrouded in secrecy and is, by its very nature, susceptible to
abuse. See generally, Mark Kadish, Belind the Locked Door of A American Grand Jury: Iis
History, Its Secrecy, and Its Process, 24 Fla.St.U.L.Rev. 1 (1996); Michael Deutsch, The
Improper Use of the Federal Grand Jury: An Instrument for the Internment of Political Activists,
75 J.Cnm.L. & Criminology 1150 (1984). “A consequence of grand jury secrecy is that neither
the courts nor Congress, nor, especially, the public, can gauge how the institution is being used.”
Marvin E. Frankel & Gary P. Naftalis, The Grand Jury: An Institution on Trial 125 (1977).

Very few of the procedural protections guaranteed to defendants in criminal trials are
available during grand jury proceedings. For example, an indictment may be based entirely on

hearsay evidence, Costello v. United States, 350 U.S. 359 (1956), the prosecutor has no

obligation to present exculpatory evidence, United States v. Williams, 504 U.S. 36 (1992), and

the Fourth Amendment exclusionary rule does not apply, United States v, Calandra, 414 U.S. 4]

(1972). According to established practice, 18 U.S.C. § 3332, and Fed.R.Crim.P. 6 and 17, a

| United States attorney may cause a grand jury subpoena to issue without spéciﬁcrgrénd jury -

authon'zation.. Seé, In re Lopreato, 511 F.2d 1150 (Ist Cir. ]975);- In re Grand Jurv Proceediﬁgs
(Schofield), 486 F.2d 85 (3d Cir. 1973). |

Furthermore, unlike witnesses summoned to appear before a court, witnesses subpoenaed
before a grand jury have almost no procedural protections available to them. Under Blair v.
United States, 250 U.S. 273 (1919), a witness subpoenaed before a grand jury has no standing to
challenge a grand jury investigation. Witnesses are interrogated in secret without any members
of the public or press present and, because grand jury proceedings are not adversarial, only the
prosecution is represented. The witness is not even permitted to have counsel present in the

grand jury room. The prosecutor may examine, cross-examine or present evidence without

rights lawsuit 4.4 million dollars against the FBI and their dupes and accomplices, the Oakland
Police, allocating the bulk of the award against the defendants based on their violations of
plaintiffs’ First Amendment rights. This was small recompense for the calumnies and years of
suffering the pair endured as a result of the attempted frame-up, which some believe drove Judi
Bari to her early death from cancer in 1997 at age 47.
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complying with the Federal Rules ol Evidence, and the wilness “has an absolute duty lo answer

all questions, subject only to a valid Fifth Amendment claim.” United States v. Mandujano, 425

U.S. 564, 581 (1976). The witness, who may be the target of the investigation, is not entitled to

notice of the privilege against self-incrimination or the possibility of representation by counsel.
The grand jury is frequently referred to as a “tool of the prosecutor.” “[A]ithough grand

Jury subpoenas are occasionally discussed as if they were the instrumentalities of the grand jury,

they are in fact almost universally instrumentalities of the United States Attorney’s office or of

some other investigative or prosecutorial department of the executive branch.” In re Grand Jurv

Proceedings (Schofield), 486 F.2d 85, 90 (3d Cir. 1973). “[T}he enormous range of discretion

held by prosecuting authorities in the United States allows them to use the law for political and
other ends.” Norman Dorsen & Leon Friedman, Disorder in the C‘ourt: Report of the
Association of the Bar of the City of New York Special Commiitee on Courtroom Conduct 170
(1973). |

Inli ght of the susceptlblhty of the grand JU]’_Y to abuse it comes as no great surpnse that
the hlstory of the grand jury system both in Eng]and where it ongmated in the seventeenth
century, and in the Unlted States, 18 tarmished with instances where improper political
motivations were permitted to interfere with its proper function. For example, in the antebellum
South, the grand jury system was used to enforce slavery laws and indict outspoken opponents of
slavery for sedition. Richard D. Younger, The People's Panel: The Grand Jury in the United
States, 85-133 (1963). Similarly, in the post-Civil War South, the grand jury system formed an
integral part of the “reign of terror” in which blacks and Reconstruction officials were indicted in
order to harass and intimidate them, while Ku Klux Klan members who deprived blacks of their
right to vote were not indicted. fd. at 128-29.

Earlier this century, the grand jury system was improperly used to frame labor organizers
and union leaders and to facilitate witch hunts for Communist sympathizers. Deuisch, supra, at
1171-73, 1175-78. More recently, during the Nixon administration; over one thousand political
activists were subpoenaed to more than one hundred grand juries across the nation. /d. at 1179.

The targets of these grand juries included anti-Vietnam War activists, lefist academics, the
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Catholic left, and supporters of the women’s movement and the black nationaiist movemeni. Jd.
at 1180. Members of the National Lawyers Guild were frequently involved in representing
persons called before grand juries and also worked to expose the abuses of the grand jury system.
The grand juries were widely understood at the time to be domestic intelligence-gathering
operations, which prompted many activists to go to jail rather than cooperate. /d. at 1182. As
Senator Edward M. Kennedy astutely observed, “under the [Nixon]} administration, we have
witnessed the birth of a new breed of political animal--the kangaroo grand jury--spawned in a
dark comer of the Department of Justice, nourished by an administration bent on twisting law
enforcement to serve its own political ends, a dangerous form of Star Chamber secret inquisition
that is trampling the rights of American citizens from coast to coast.” Washingion Post, March
14,1972, at 2, col. 3. Recently, Senator Tom Harkin ekpressed similar concern regarding a
subpoena issued against student organizers of an anti-war conference at Drake University in
lowa, along with the local chapter of the National Lawyers Guild, when he said: © ‘I don’t like
the smell of it,...It reminds me too much of Vietnam when war protesters were rounded up,. . .
when grand juries were coﬁvenéd.tc; invéstigate ijeo.p]e who were protésting fhe war.” bes
Moine;v Régister, February 7, 2004. The government subséquently withdrew its sﬁbpéena after
the affected parties filed a motion to quash.

In the case at bar, the federal govemment is clearly overstepping its bounds again. Grand
juries “are not licensed to engage in arbitrary fishing expeditions, nor may they select targets of

mvestigation out of malice or an intent to harass.” United States v. R. Enterprises, Inc., 498 U.S.

at 299 (1991). Rather, the proper role of the grand jury is to serve as “a primary security to the
mnocent against hasty, malicious and oppressive persecution; it serves the invaluable function in
our society of standing between the accuser and the accused. . . to determine whether a charge is
founded upon reason or was dictated by an intimidating power or by malice and personal ill

will.” Wood v Georgia, 370 US 375, 390 (1962). See also, Costello v. United States, 350 U.S.

359, 362 (1956); Hale v Henkel, 201 U.S. 43, 59 (1906).
While Congress has refused to grant general investigatory subpoena power to the Justice

Department or the FBI, cf. United States v. Minker, 350 U.S. 179, 191 (1956) (Black, 1.,
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concurring) (“Apparently Congress has never even attempled to vest FBI agents wilh such
private inquisitorial power™), as a practical matter, the subpoena power of the grand jury is an
investigatory tool used to gather information which cannot be pained by usual investigatory
means. For example, the subpoena power has been used to assist the FBI, the Internal Security
Division of the Department of Justice, and other federal agencies in gathering intelligence data

and in obtaining information which 1s otherwise inaccessible. See, e.g., United States v. Ryan,

455 F.2d 728 (9th Cir. 1972} (court reversed conviction where the IRS sought records which it
could not have obtained through enforcement of an administrative subpoena, but which the

Government obtained instead through subpoenas duces tecum); In re September 1972 Grand

dury, 454 F.2d 580, 585 (7th Cir. 1971) (“[1]t would be an abuse of the grand jury process for the
government to conduct a general fishing expedition under grand jury sponsorship with the mere
explanation that the witnesses are potential defendants™; “[W]e hold it to be an abuse of the
grand jury process for the Government to impose on that body to perform investigative work that

can be, and theretofore has been successﬁll]y accomphshed by the regular 1nvest1gat1ve agenmes .

. of Government.”); see also Donner & Cerruti, “The Grand Jury Network,” The Nation, Jan.

1972; Cowan, “The New Grand Jury,” New Yo k Times Magazine, Apnl 29 1973.°

Mr. Wolfis a freelance videographer, who records video for the Indy Media Center, an
amalgam of independent media websites, which also produces a cable television news segment.
He shot video of the July 8, 2005 protest, which is posted on at least one of the websites. In this
case, Mr. Wolf also sold edited portions of video from the July 8, 2005 protest to three major
television networks. The government has subpoenaed Mr. Wolf because he declined FBI in
person demands that he produce video shot during the protest. The SFPD and the FBI already

have the interenet video.

? “Officials of the Justice Department ... firmly endorse the idea that the jurtes should be
used fo extract information the FB1 can’t obtain .... A. William Olson, then head of the
department’s Internal Security Division, saw nothing wrong with the use of the grand jury as a
tool to develop broad information for the Government.” Cowan, “The New Grand Jury,” New
York Times Magazine, April 29, 1973,
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MOTION TO QUASH GRAND JURY SUBPOENA




I~J

[V H)

The United States Supreme Courl has directed the federal courls to ensure that grand jury

investigations respect the First Amendment rights of reporters. In Branzbure v. Hayes, 408 U.S.

665 (1972}, the Supreme Court held that although the First Amendment does not protect
newspaper reporters from being subpoenaed to testify about their sources, “grand jury
investigations if instituted or conducted other than in good faith, would pose wholly different
issues for resolution under the First Amendment. . . . We do not expect courts will forget that
grand juries must operate within the limits of the First Amendment as well as the Fifth.”
Branzburg, 408 U.S. at 707-08. In the case at bar, the government is using the grand jury as a
tool of intimidation, and to engage in a fishing expedition, in a manner proscribed by the
Supreme Court, and censured by lawmakers.

Since the movant has made a showing that the government is proceeding in bad faith by
attempting to chill and harass a political community, by misusing a federal grand jury in an effort
to “assist” local authorities in pending local criminal cases, and by attempting to circumvent the

Cahforma Shleld Law which protects a reporters files and-sources, the Couﬁ should sanction the

govemment by quashmg the subpoena Branzburg, 408 U.S. at 707 08; In Re Grand Jury
Subpoenas served upon Edward I{Jefaber, et al., 774 F.2d 969 (9[h Cir., 1985)(quashing grand

Jury subpoenas as sanction for Government’s disclosure of grand jury materials to local law
enforcement agencies).

At a bare minimum, since the movant has made a prima facie showing that the subpeona
infringes his First Amendment rights, the government must show a compelling need for the
requested records and that such records have a substantial relationship to this compelling interest.

United States v. Citizens State Bank, 612 F.2d 1091 (8th Cir. 1980). In addition, the government

must show that the relevant information can not be obtained through less intrusive means.

National Commodity and Barter Association y. United States, 951 F.2d 1172, 1174 (10 Cir.

1991). Mr. Wolf should then be given a chance to respond.
1
1
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1V, CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, Joshua Wolf respectfully requests that the Court stay and ultimately
quash the subpoena and the subpoena duces tecum. In the alternative, Mr. Wolf respectfully
requests that the Court require the government to identify the nature and purpose of its
investigation, and to show that the requested records bear a substantial relationship to a
compelling governmental interest, and that they cannot be obtained through less intrusive means,
and if the government makes such an initial showing, provide Mr. Wolf with the opportunity to
show that the deprivations of his First Amendment rights outweigh the government’s cited
interest(s). Mr. Wolf also respectfully requests such further relief as the Court deems just and
proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

Dated: February 15, 2006
SIEGEL & YEE

Attorneys for Joshua Wolf

Subpoenaed Party '

By: —

27 2
/JﬁE LUIS FUENTES

Attorney Ben Rosenfeld contributed to this motion.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Jose Luis Fuentes, certify that on the 15th day of February, 2006, 1 caused the
foregoing Motion to Quash and associated documents to be served on the U.S. Attorney’s Office,
Northern District of California, by mailing a copy of the documents by First Class U.S. mail. In
addition, faxed copies of all documents were sent to the U.S. Attorney’s office on the 15th day of
February, 2006 at 415-436-6846. _

o P =
/&e Luis Fuentes
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JOSHUA WOLF
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Inre GRAND JURY SUBPOENA

dated February 1, 2006. DECLARATION OTF JOSE LLUIS FUENTES
IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO QUASH

, - o SR _ 'SUBPEONA_ AND SUBPOENA DUCES
JOSHUA WOQOLF, ' TECUM
Subpoenaed Party. | Date: _

Time: 9:30 a.m.
Courtroom:

1, JOSE LUIS FUENTES, declare and state as follows:

I am an attorney at law licensed to practice law in the State of California. I am counsel of
record for Joshua Wolf. If called upon to testify about the matters herein, 1 could testify
competently about such matters based on my personal knowledge and/or on my review of the
files in the state cniminal actions and this related federal action. I make this declaration in
support of Petitioner’s Motion To Quash Subpoena And Subpoena Duces Tecum.

The subpoena, a true copy of which is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by
reference, sets forth the genesis for Mr. Wolf’s subpoena.
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Based on information and belief, Joshua Wolf'is a freelance journalist and videographer
who records video for the Indy Media Center, an amalgam of independent media websites, which
also produces a cable television news segment. Mr. Wolf has also sold his footage of breaking
news events to NBC, KTVU, and KRON.

Based on information and belief, Mr. Wolf was gathering news on July 8, 2006. He
transmitted the news he had gathered to Indy Media Center. He was paid for his breaking news
footage by NBC, KTVU, and KRON in July of 2005.

Based on information and belief, during the week of July 11, 2005, Lea W. Militello,
Sergeant/Inspector, for San Francisco Police Department (“SFPD™), Scott A. Merriam and
Suzanne G. So]ombn, Special Agents, for the Federal Bureau of Investigation visited Mr. Wolf
residence. Mr. Wolf was interviewed by the SFPD and FBI for about an hour and a half. They
asked Mr. Wolf if he makes it a habit to document *Anarchist Action” protests. They wanted

mformatlon on “Anarchist Action,” such as who they are and what their mission is. The SFPD s

mmdent reports and mveshgatlve documents likewise reveal generallzatlons about anarchlsts and

anarchism. Exhibits B, SFPD incident reports re]ated to July 8, 2005 incident, and D, SFPD
Investigator’s Chronology, hereby incorporated by reference. The FBI and SFPD also inquired
regarding the edited new clip on Indy Media and the networks. Mr. Wolf declined the FBI’s and
SFPD’s demands that he produce the unedited video.

The SFPD did initiate an investigation, led by Inspector Lea W. Militello, and local
charges are pending against three people in connection with the incident: the individual accused
of putting the foam in front of the police car (preliminary hearing scheduled for March 1, 2006),
and two observers, charged with misdemeanors and accused of interfering. They are charged in
San Francisco Superior Court.

On July 15, 2005, Scott A. Merriam and Lea W. Militello, visited the Law Office of

Siegel & Yee. Mr. Merriam was informed that the unedited video footage of Mr. Wolf would
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not be turned over without a court order because of First Amendment and California Constitution
protection for news gathers.

Exhibit C, SFPD Inspector Lea Militello’s request for assistance from FBI Joint
Terrorism Task Force, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Only several weeks ago, FB1 Special Agent Nasson Walker drafted an affidavit in
support of a complaint and arrest of three young, alleged, would-be eco-saboteurs in Auburn
(Sacramento County), which reads like a tract against anarchism. Exhibit E, Affidavit by FBI
Special Agent Nasson Walker, hereby incorporated by reference.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing 1s true and correct. Executed in Oakland California, this 15 day of January, 2006.

o o 2

_~~_ JOSE LUIS FUENTES
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2005R00883
AQ 110 (Rev. 12/88) Subpoana to Tasilfy Beiore Grand Jury

ol Y - GJ 0681
Buited Btutes Bistrict Court
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF  CALIFORNIA
TO: Joshua Woif
SUBPOENA TO TESTIFY
BEFORE GRAND JURY
SUBPOENA FOR:

<] PERSON DOCUMENT(S) OR OBJECT(S)

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDER !0 appear and fastify befora the Grand Jury of the Linitad Statas District
Court at the place, date, and time speciiied below.

PLACE , COURTROOM
Unitad States Diatrict Court
Federal Building & Courthouse Grand Jury Room B - 171h Floor
450 Goldan Gate Avenue DATE AND TIME
8an Franeisco, CA 84102 :
‘ : February 18, 2008 at %:30am -

YOU ARE ALSO COMMANDED to bring with you the followlng document(s) or obfect(s):*
SEE ATTACHMENT A

[} Ploase ses additional Information an reversa

This subpoena shall remain in effect unfil o @ Grag@iRsaydmBdanart by the court or by an officer acting on
bahalf of tha court 5 o,
1.S. MAGISTRATE JUDGE OR CLERK OF oounf'r f DATE
RICHARD W. WIEKING _

L AR L ‘

TN Fa 1,.2008
This subpoena is issued on application W‘ 53 AND PHONE NUMBER: -
of tha-United States of America JONATHAN SCPmITT, AUSA .
KEVIN V. RYAN U.5. Attorney’s Office, 450 Golden Gate Ave., Box 38066

United Statas Attorney San Francieco, CA 94102 (415)436-6778
FBI SA Suzanne G, Solomon (610} 2514168

*}f not applicable, enter "none”



ATTACHMENT A
L Definitlons

1. “Document” or "documents" means writings and recordings of any type or
description, whether originals or copies (e.g., carbon, handwritten, typewritten, microfilm,
photostatic, and xerographic copies), regardless of where loeated, that are in your
possession, custody, or control. For purposes of this definition:

2. “writings and recordings" are materials upon which information or
data has been recorded or is retained in any form, however produced, g.g., handwritten,
typed, printed, digitally recorded, taped, computerized, encoded or otherwise produced,
reproduced or copied.

b. each copy of & writing or recording that differs in any way from the
original, e.g., by virtue of an addition, deletion, alteration, notation or inscription, is a
separate document.

c. documents include, but are not limited to, correspondence,
memorands, communications, books, reports, records, slips, self-stick notes, telephone
and ather logs, rolodexes or other telephone books, telephone message notations, notes
and/or memoranda of telephone conversations, notebooks, calendars, diarics, working
papers, contracts, agreements, vouchers, invoices, billings, receipts, cancelled checks,
check stubs, bank drafts, bank records, data sheets, microfilm, microfiche, tape _
recordings, information stored in computer hard drive, or on computer disk or tape, or any
other electronic or mechanical recording or trangeript, and any other instrument or device
which contains any information or from which any information can be derived or
retrieved. (When documents arc stored in computer hard drive, or on computer tapes or
disks, the documents to be produced shall include all program instructions and other
materials necessary for their use or retrieval),

2. The term "communication" or "communications” means any transmission or
exchange of information between two or more persons, orall y or in writing, and includes,
without limitation, any conversation, contact or discussion, whether face-to-face or by
means of telephone, telegraph, telex, electronic or other media, whether by chance or

design.

3. The term "person” or "persons” includes any individual, group of
individuals, sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, company,
unincorporated business association, or other entity,



4. Theterms "and" and "or” shall be construed either conjunctively or
disjunctively as necessary to bring within the scape of the request any documnent which
might otherwise be construed to be outside its scope.

5. The original of all documents that are responsive in whole or in part to any
paragraph in Part II of this subpoena attachment are to be produced to the grand jury.

6. For any document withheld under a claim of privilege, provide & statement

setting forth:

the name and title of the author(s) of the document:

the name and title of the person(s) to whom the documents is
addressed; |

the names and titles of all persons to whom copies of the document,
or any part thereof, were sent or shown;

the date of the document;

& bricf dcéc'ription of the subject matier of the document;

the nature of the blaifned privilege;'

all facts which you claim demonstrate that the privilege has not heen
waived; and

the paragraph(s) or subparagraph(s) of this subpoena attachrnent to
which the document is responsive.

I1. Items To Be Produced

All documents, writings and recordings related to the protest activities conducted

in San Francisco, California, on July 8, 2005, between the hours of 6:30 p.m, and 11:59

p.m., including hut not limited to:

1. photographs;

[ 2]



developed and undeveloped film and film negatives and positives;

video tape recordings;

sudio tapes;

digital media containing images of the said prolest activities;

records reflecting the software used to process, manipulate or store the
electronic images, video and/or audio data;

cach camera, video recorder, audio recording device or other hardware or

equipment used to record any part of the above described events of July 8,

200s.



AQ 110 {Rev. 12/39) Subpoeng ta Testify Bafora @rand Jury

RETURN OF SERVICE'
RECEIVED DATE PLACE
BY SERVER
DATE PLACE
SERVED
SERVED ON {PRINT NAME)
'SERVED BY (PRINT NAME) TITLE
STATEMENT OF SERVICE FEES o

TRAVEL SERVICES TOTAL

DECLARATION OF SERVER?

| daclars under penalty of perjury under the laws of the Unitod States of America that the foregoing.
Infarmation contained In the Return of Service and Statament of Service Fees Is true and corract.

Exacuted on

Date Signature of Sarver

Address of Server

Additinnal Information

1As fowho may sarve a subpoena and tha maaner of its service see Rule 17(d), Federai Rulas of Crliminal Procodure, ar Rule
45}, Fedaral Rulas of Clll Procedura.

2"Faaa and miteago nead not be tendarad to the witness upon service of a subpaena issued an bahslf of the Uriled States aran
atticer ar agency theranf (Rufs 48(c), Federat Rules of Civil Procedurs; Rula 17{d), Faderal Rulps of Criminal Procedura) or on
bahalf of cartain Indlgent parties and criminal defandants wha ara unable to pay such costs {20 USC 1026, Rules 17(b) Fadarsl
Rules of Griminai Procedure)”.






teport Type: Initial INCIDENT REPORT
Incident Number Furrencs to Date/Time Reported Dae/Time CAD Nurmber
| | 050-764-676 ' 07/08/05 21:54 051884145 '
i W 0

Segge rancisco Police Department@

050764676

J |- Type of Incident

ssaull, Aggravated, On Police Oﬁ' cer, W/'Force -04074, Lynching by Riot —19032 Arson, Police Building -26033

i

929%97050"

3 Lacagion of Oceumenee At lm::rsecuun mthf}’rcrmse type
~ | 3370 23rgd St , Bartiett’ Stest Al Others, explain in Namrative . '
~ | Confidential Arest Suspect Suspect NDn-Susp:l:t © | Domestic |, (Type of Weapan Used) Reponing Unit
¥ Report?  []|Made? 7 |Known? | Unknown? (A | tncidenr [ Violence? [ 3000
r Location Sent . ' ,
22ND ST i L '
How Cleared? Reported to Bureau Name Star Date/  Time' | Elder Gang Juvenile Prejudice
) Operations Canfer  Schwartz 1511 07/08/05 22:05| Victim [ ]} Relaied? b4 Subject? [ | Based? []
I -
O D | ldeclare under penalty of perjury, this reppri of Z pages Is lrue and gorracy, based on my personal knowledge; or is based on
F E information and belief following an investigation of the events arﬁzfvol d.
g C [ PROP 115 CERTIFIED . Stgnature: ZH/e/ i -
l L | Reporing Officer © Smr Swtion 7/ Watch Date
A | Woif,Michae! W ! 1568 Mission Statién : 1500-0100 07/10/05 00:30:54
C R [Reviewing Officer STAR | Station Warch Daie
E 1!} S66T1T KA qu H. _126q |Mission Station ' | | 1500-0100 7/10 /@5 '
R 1 }oc STAR Station : ! [-Walch Dal:
V] S6T 6 /L/f} ’/ . /&0 | Mission, Station 1500-0100 —0-S~
O [Related Case | Related Cose’ | Re-Assigned to A Assigned o 5200  Assigned by MWW #1568
N | 050-763-907 Copieslo  5G200 5G2D0 58200 AddiCopies DA, OR, VWAP, SID, FBI, APD, SO3
Code Name (Last, First Middie) 1 Allas
R |Rrwv 1 |SFPD #1568 and #1924, | |
/ | Day Phone . Type Huml:'Addms ' City State Zip Code -
b Night Phone- Type Work Address City State Zip Code
c (415) 558-5400 Work 630 Valencia Street ) SF . { CA 94107-
; poB / Age DOB | orage berwen: Race | Sex Height | Weight | HairColor  {Eye Color | 3 Type Jurisd =~ ID No.
T Unk[7] mod :
1 Caonfidentizl “Violent Crime 283 pC Star FoHow-up Form Statemnent Relationship to Subjest
M Persoit Motification [ ] | Motification [} ‘ves [} YES O
School (if Juvenile) Injury/Treatment Other Information/If Interpreter Needed Specify Language
. : See narrative
Code Name (Last, First Middle) ‘ALIAR '
B1 Tarlow, Cody
B Day Phone Type Home Address City - Siate Zip Code
Refused | 11189 Lompico Rd Felton CA
O Night Phone Type Woark Address -} City Sate Zip Code
0 ,
K 4 | DOB Date of Birth Age or pge berween Rase | Sex Height | Weight | Hair Color Eye Color
E |Unknown [7) 10/07/83 21 and’ WM
D SFNO WD# (if Juvi) | ID Typeflurisdiction/Number ID Type/urisdiction/Number D Type/uristiction/Mumber
Book Sectina #1 Book Section #2 Boak Section #3 Book Section #4 Book Section #5 Booking Location
NW2450PC NW243(d)PC NW148.10PCX2 NWB64/4053(b)PC NW182PC Mission Station
Warrant # Court # Action # Dept Enroute o CWB Check Star
Canedo 49
Warranl Violation{s} Bail Mirandized  Star Daie Time Stalement
-4 [ U
e' Cirarion # Violation{s) Appear Date/Time . Location of Appearance
Book/Cite Approval Star Mass Arrest Code M X-Rays School (if Juvenile) [}CA Fom Booked
Sgt. Kaprosch 1289 ] Copy Altached

Other Information: Ciztien/Warrat/Booking Charge{s)yMissing Person-Subject Description; Scars, Marks, Taioos
Additional Booking Charges; NW 453 PC, 185 PC.




050764676

& rancisco Police Departmen&®
ADDITIONAL REPORTEE

| RP CODES: F -FOUND; N -NOTIFY;P -PARENT; R -REPQRTEE; V -VICTIM; W -WWNEéS
ﬁ , | Code Name (Last, First Middiz) \ - Alias
w1 SFSD 1121 ,{Urknown First Name)
| Day Phone T Type Home Address ' : City State Zip Code -
T ) Refused ' )
N Wight Phone Type Waork Address City : Siate Zip Code
£ 1| (415) 73¢-2321. Work 120 14th Street | SF - ca ' 94103
DOB/ Aee | DOB orage betwen | Race Sex Height Weight | HairCotor  [Eye Color | H¥ Ne
S . unk [] AND l :
S 1. [Confidental Violent Crime | 293 PC Star F/U Form Statement | Relationship to Subject ,
Person Notificaion [ ] | Motification [ vEs [ | YES Stranger/None
School (if Juveriie) Injury/Treatment | Other Information/tf Inzerpreter Needed Specify Language
I ] a .
. Code '| Name (Last, First Middle) . ALIAS
W w2 SFPD 554 ,(Unknown First Name) -
A Day Phone Type " | Home Address City | Sate Zip Code
T , . Refused
N Night Phane Type Work Address ! City State Zip Code
E 2 (415) 558-5400  Work 630 Valencia Strest SF CA 94110-
S pOR/ . - tAge SORB i:[ or ai:getwccn Race Sex Height Weight | Hair Color  |[EyeColor | ID.Ne
y| Un . :
S Confidential Violent Crime 283 PC Star F/U Form Seatement Relarionship to Subject
, | Berson Notification [ [ Notification [7] YEs [J ] .YES Stranger/None
Schoot (i Juvenile) Injury/Treatment Other Information/Il Interpreter Needed Specify Languape ' '
M Code Nome (Last, Fiist Middle) ALIAS
(w3 SFPD 1467 {Unknown First Name) -
I Pny Phene Type | Home Address City Stae Zip Codz
T . | Refused ’
N. ' F‘]ght Phone Type . Work Address City State "Zip Code
E 3 |t415)558-5400 Work | 630 Valencia Street SF . Jea 94110- .
S boB/ Age EC%[B D' oraizgctwcm Race Sex Height ‘ Weight | Hair Color  |EyeColor |2 No -
Tl
S Cuonfidential Violent Crime 293PC Sur F/U Form Statement- | Relationship to Subject
Person [ {Wotification [T | Notification ] , YES [1| YES M |Stanger/None
School (if Juvenile) InjuryfTreatment ‘ Other Information/If Intzrpreter Needed Specify Language
‘ r
: Code  Name {Last, First Middle) Alias
W wa' SFPD 1289 ,{Unknown First Nama)
] Day Phone Type Wark Address City State Zip Cade
T Refused
N Night Phone Type WORK ADDRESS Ciry Staie Zip Code
E 4 | (415) 558-5400 Work 630 Valensia Street SF , CA 84110-
S DoB/ Age ltjjnOkB 0 or ais; E:twccn Race Sex l Heigit | Weight | Hair Color  |Eye Color | D Ne
S Confidential . | Violent Crime 203 PC Star FAJ Foom Starement Relationship to Subject
Person [J |Motfication [} | Notification [] YES [ | YES [ |Strapger/None
School (if Juvenile) Injury/Treatment Other Information/If Interpreter Needed Specify Language
SFPD3TT B (03703}

e

lm el wmdH NEATRARTA
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050764676

SEg Crancisco Folice Departmenss
ADDITIONAL REPORTEE -

RP CODES: F -FOUND; N -NOTIFY;P -PARENT! R -REPORTEE; V VICTIM; W -WITNESS
. 1 ' ‘'

Code Namez (Last, First Middle) . Alias,
W 5 SFPD 4226 (Unknown i*l‘ltrs{ Nama) ! \

l Day Phone Type Home Addrzss " ciy State Zip Code
T - Refused .

N Night Phone Type Work Address * ' City State Zip Code
E 7 |(415)556-5400 Work | 630 Valencia Street SF CA 94110

: DOB/ Age | DOB orage between | Race Sex ‘Height - | Weight | Hair Colar  {Eye Color | ID No.

S Unk ]| , awo L , :

S Confidential Violent Crime . 295}:(: . Siar FJ Form Statement Relationship to Subject

Person [ |MNetification ] | Notification [} YES 0| ves Stranger/None '

Schoel (if Juvenile) Injory/Treatment i . Other Infermation/if Interpreter-Needed Specify Language

' ' '
1 |
T
I
b Code Name {Last, First Middle). | Al 1
‘ A LIAS
W |ws SFSD 1486 ,(Unknown.First Name} vl :
] l : { Day Phone Type Heme Address City State Zip Code

T o -Refused
N Wight Phone "Type Woark Address b Ciy | State Zip Code )
E 6- (415) 554-2380 = Work 120 14th Strest Ll BF CA 94103-

DOB/.  Age|DOB | orage betwemn, i | Race  { Sex Height | Weight | Hair Color  [Eye Color | ID'No
S Junk’ [] -ANC ' :
. - - -1
S { Confidential Violent Crime. | 203 PC | Star FfU Form * - | Statement Relationship to Subject
Pzrson Norification  [], Iiunﬁcanon O vEs 1| veEs O |Stranger/None
School (if Juv:nilé) Injury/Treatment I Other Information/If Interpreter Needed Specify Langnage
- t
]
I 1
& Cade Name {Last, First Middle) - ‘ T [ALIAS
¥ w7 SFSD 1347 {Unknown First Name) -

I Day Phone Type Home Address City State Zip Code
T . ‘Refused . o
N Night Phone Type “Work Address City Statz Zip Codz
£ 7 (415) 554-2380 Work 120 14th Strest . _ISF CA J94103-

DOB/ Age | DOB orage betwezn | Race Sex Height | Weight | HairColor JEye Color | D Ne
S Unk [ AND : ‘
S Confidential V?n}r:nt Cmnc 293 PC Star F/UJ Form Statement Relationship m Subject
Person [ | Motification ] [ Notification []] . YES [1] YES . | Stranger/Nons !
School (if Juvanile) Injury/Treatment ’ Other Information/If Interpreter Needed Specify Language
Code Name (Last, First Middls) “Alias
W Iws Tray, Ryan D

I Day Phone ~ Type Work Ad Ciry State Zip Code
T | Home - sF CA 94120-
N' 8 Night Phons - Type ‘WORK ADDRESS - City State Zip Code
E .

DOB/ Ape | DOB orage between | Race  § Sex Height | Weight | HairColar  [Eye Color [ D' No
S |oapsrre 29 |usk [J]  awo
S Confidential Violznt C_:n'mc 293.PC ) Star FAJ Form Statzment ‘| Relationship to Subject
Person [} |Notification  [] | Noiification [ ]} 1568 YES J YEs B | Stranger/None
School (if Juvenile) injury/Treagment Other Information/H Interpreter Needed Specify Languoape
-y
SFPD377 B (03/03)
e —d

Incident¥ 050764676
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Seg@-rancisco Police Department®
ADDITIONAL SUSPECTS

050764676

CODE Name (Lost, First Middie) Alias
B B 2 Ermst,- Donitt s . ]
Day Phone Type Home Address City State Zip Code
0 Refused w : Bearkley CA
O Night Phone . Type Work Address Ciry State Zip Code
K 1 | Schoot (if Juveniie) Race Sex DOB DoB Height Weight HairColer + | Eye Color
¢ . w F Unknown [1105/31/79 .
E SFNG' ¥D# €itduv) | 1D No v : ’ D Na J ID No
D i B‘Dob'Gharg: 1 Book/Charge 2 Book/Charge 3 - Book/Charge 4 Book/Charge 5 Where Booked
] NW2450PC Nw243{d)PC NW14B.10PCX2 ‘NwB64/405(h)PC NW1B2PC Mission Station
"| Warant# Count # Action # Dept Enroute To . CWB Check Star
v ' Canedo 49
Warrznt Violation(s) a 1 Bail Mirandized  Star Date/Time Statement
Citarion # - | Violation(s) ' Appear Date/Time Lumiup of Appesfance
Book/Cite Approval  Star | Mass Arrest Code M X-Rays
Sgt. Beazley 2073 N
Other Information: Cihiation/Warrant/Booking Charge{s)/Mitsing Persons-Subject Description/Scars, Marks, Taloos
Additinnal Booking Charges; NW 455 PC, NW148(b) PC, 594(a){2) PC
5 . O ORIGINAL PRIVATE PERSON'S ARREST FORM BOOKED AS EVIDENCE. PHOTOCOPY
28 ATTACHED WITH THIS REPORT.
2 .
-
. CO'DE Nzme (].asi. First Middle) Alins
1 B3 Doe, John
B Day Phone Type , | Homie Address City State Zip Code
d : . Refused | Refused , g
: iNight Phane Type Work Address City State Zip Code
O School (if Juvenile) Race Sex boB - |DOB Hefght Weight | Hair Color Eye Color
K ' ] w M Unknown [7] : ’ : '
E SENO JD#{ifhv) [ IDNo D No D No.
D Book/Charpe 1 Book/Charge 2 _ Book/Charge 3 Book/Charge 4 Book/Charpge 5 Where Booked
. NW2450PC NW243(d)PC NW148.10PCX2 NW404.60PC NWEBEB4/405(b)PC | Mission Statlon
b U warent Court # Action # Dept Enraute To CWB Check - Bur
'3 _ ’ ’ ’ ' Caneto 49
Warrant Vidiatian{s) Bail Mirandized Star - | Date/Time Statement
A | B . 5
“Citation # Violztion(s) Appear Date/Time  Location of Appearance
Book/Citz Approval  Star l Mass Arrest Code I M X-Rays l
Sgt. Beazley 2073

Other Information: Citation/Warrant/Booking Charge(s)/Missing Persons-Subject Description/Scars, Marks, Tatoos
Additional Booking Charges; NW182PC, NW2436{2)PC, NW5S4(a)(2)Pc, NW455 PC.

U ORIGINAL PRIVATE PERSON'S ARREST FORM BOOKED AS EVIDENCE PHOTOCOPY
ATTACHED WITH THIS REPORT

SFPD377 C (11m32)

Incident# 050764676
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VAIGEF AL ID W 1 VLT LAGR U st

PROPERTY LISTINGS ,
D Code/No Itemn Description ' ’ Brand Model
DAM 1 Right rear taillight ' ‘
1 | Serial No. Gun Make | ) oo Caliber IColor Narcoties Lab Ne. Quantiry _\faiu:
L RED , 1 ITBD
Seized by (Star) From Where . ! i \ ’
Additional Description/ldentifying Numbers
To (D} Patrol Vehicle B1138. v
Code/No Item Description Brznd Mode]

. ' I +
Serial No Gun Make I [ Catiber " [Culor Harcotics Lab No Quantity Value
Seized by (Star) From Where '

. t !
Addijtional Deseription/ldentifying Numbers | 1
. 1
-| Code/No hem Deseription Brand Model
. N . .
Serial No Gun Make Caliber olor Narcotics Lab Nao. Quantity Value
! L
) Seized by (Star) From Where '
- ) p

Additional Description/ldentifying Numb;l-g-

Code/No Itern Description ' | Brand Muodel

Serial No Gun Meke 1 Caliber Color Narcotics Lab Ne +| Quuntizy Valuz

Seized by (Star) From Where

“Additional Deseription/Identifying Numbers

Code/No Bem Description Brand Muodel

Serial No Gun Make Caliber alor Narcotics Lab No Quantity Value

Seized by (Smr) From Where

Additionat Description/Identifying Numbers

Code/No ftem Description Brznd Model

Serial No Gun Make Caliber olor Nareotics Lab No. Quantity Value

Seized by {Star) From Where

"Additional Description/Identifying Numbers

Code/No Item Description Brand Model

Serial No. Gun Mzke Caliber Color Nareotics Lab No Quanltity Value
F Seized by (Star) From Where

Additional Deseription/Identifying Numbers

Incident## 050764676

Page 5o0f 12
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rancisCco Folice pepdrineirs=

: ‘ _ PROPERTY LISTINGS
E Code/No ltem Description Brand Model
EVD 1 Crime scene log SEPD '

' 1 | Serfal No. Gun Make Caliber Color - Narcotics Lab No Quansity  +f Vaiue
g WHI 2 NA
T Seized by (Star) From Whers | )

1901 Crime Scene
Additional Description/Identifving Numbers
Orime scene log from 3337 23rd strest and 3370 23rd street {vehicle).
E |CoderNo | ltem Description , Brand | Model - -
EVD 2 Radio Motorola IXTS3000
2 | §erial No Gun Make Caliber Color Narzonics Eab No Quantity Vaiue
 § 713256 BLK 1 TBD
Saized by (Star) From Where
2027 u Crime Scene -
Additional Descripion/dentifying Numbers
SFPD departent issued radid. ! ' '
| . , .
E | Code/No Ttern Description | Brand | Model ¢
EVD 3 | Ear piece wire 7
3 | serai No Gun Make Caliber Color NMarcotics Lab No Quantity - | Vale
_ v . BLK 1 200,00
Seized by (Star) From Where '
2027 Crime sceng
Additional Description/ldentifying Numbers
Ear piece wire used with SFPD issued radio.
E | Code/No | liem D;.scription Firand Model
"IEVD 4. Written statemants SFPD \
4 [SerialNo - Gun Make | Catiber '[Coler Narcotics Lab No Quantty | Vae -
Co ’ WHI : -1 NA
Seized by {Stwmr) From Where T :
1801 Oificer Kane #4226,
11 Additonal Description/ldentifying Numbers
Written staternent from Ithe above listed individual regarding their knowledga of this incident.
1. : .
E | CpdeiNo | Mem Deseription Brand Model
EVD 5 Clothing .
5 | serial No. Gun Make | Catiber alor Nareotics Lab No Quantity Value
. ~ MUL/COL -
Seized by (Swr) - From Whete
2027 {B) Ernst
Additional Deseription/ldentifying Numbers
{ I(11) Blk blouse, (1} Blk pants, (1) blue jean jacket, (1} palr whits socks and (1) pair blk shoes.
E | Code/No | Jiem Description Brand Model
EVD & "Clothing ]
€ | Serjal No. Gun Make Caliber ICoior Narcatics Lab No Quantity Vaiue
. MUL/COL NA
Seized by (Star)” From Where
2027 (8) Tarow
Additional Deseription/Ientifying Numbers
(1) Yellow pants, {1 j green shirt, (1) blk sweater, (1} blk socks, {1) pair blue shoes.
E | Cod/No Item Description Brand Model
EVD 7 Ciothing
.-L Serial No. Gun Make Caliber lColor Narcotics Lah No. Quantity Value
MUL/COL MA
Seized by (Star) From Where
2027 (B) Doe

“Additiopal Description/ldentifying Numbers
(1) Biu jacket, (1) Pair gray panis, {1) pair brown shoes, (1}

pair white socks and (1) blk T shirt.

incident# 050764676
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ancisco Police Departmen®

ROPER LY LiSTINGS
E Cade/Na Item Diescription Brand Mode)
EvVD 8 Sign )
B Scrinl Mo Gun Make | ' - Caliber IColor Marcotics Lah No. Quantity Value
MUL/COL 1 NA
Seized by (Star) Fram Where \ ! ) i : —+
1801 Crime scene ' !
Addmonal Descriptionfidentifying Numbers ' !
Styrofoam sign stating "From Scotland to San Francxsm our, res:stance is ulobal " '
E | Code/No ltem Description . Brand Model
EVD 9 Uniform Pants . , SFEPD .
‘% | Serfal No Gun Make f Caliber “IColor Nnrcu(i-;s Lab No. Quantity Value ‘
. . BLU . 1 300.00
Séized by (Star} From Where 1
1501 - SFPD 1568 { '
Additional Description/ldentifying Numbe:rs i |
Damaged uniform pants I
P | Code/No. Ttem Descripsion ' Brand Modei !
SFK 1 Department issued dpty belt ISFPD :
1 [ Serial No. Gun Make - Caliber ICalor Narcotics Lab Na. Quaritity Value
i 1 . 150000
Seized by (Star) From Where ' ST,
2027 ‘SFPD 1924 "
| Additional Description/identifying Numbcg’s ) ,
P .| Code/No Tiern Description ' | Brand Model
" |SFK 2 Department issued fire anmm SIG SAUER P226
2 | Serinl No Gun Male . ‘Caliber Color Narcotics Lab No Quantity Valoe
803687 SIGARMS | 40 BlLK. : ' - 1. j800.00
Seized by (Star) . | From Where
1901 i SFPD 1924 )
Additional Dscﬁpﬁnn{ldentifying Numbers
P {Code/No ltern Description P— —
SFK 3 SIGARMS Magazine ) SIG P225
3 | Serial Ne. Gun Make Caliber olar Narcotics Lab No Quantity Value
_ SIGARMS 40 BLK 1 140.00
Seized by (Star) From Where . )
4 Crime Scene
Additional Dﬁqﬁpdonﬂdcntifying Numbers
One full magazine-containing 12 -40 cal rounds and ane ioss .40 cal round.
E | Code/No #tem Description Brand Madel
EVD-10 Poperty receipts _ SFPD
1 | Serial No Gun Make . Caliber (Color Nareotics Lab No. Quantity Value
o . WHI 3 NA
Seized by (Stzv) From Where
1901
- i Additional Description/identifying Numbers
Receipts for seized property taken from Emst, Tarlow, & Doe.
E | Code/No ftem Description Brand Model
EVD 11 Digital image disks
..} Serinl No. Gun Make Caliber olor Narcotics Lab Mo. Quantity Value
BLK 8 NA
Seized by (Star) From Where .
1568 1568
Additional Description/ldentifying Numbers
images down loaded from protestor web site showing criminal activity, crime scene and injurad officer. mages of (D) Patrol
Vehicle. lmages of iniuries 1o Officer Wolf,
Page 7Tof 12
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Francisco Police Departmerf®
VEHICLE INFORMATION

050764676
VEHKICLE éOQES: 8 -BOOSTED; D -DAMAGED; F USED FELONY; T -TOWED; U -USED OTHER; V —\_J'A.NDALEZED; X STRIFPED
Code Plate Wa State Reg Yr Plate Type YIN No
1D 1083338 ca | 2099 EX ! ZFAFP71WS1X161128
=z
Q| Veh Year Make . . Maodsl
g 2001 Ford , - | Crown Vic . ,
i Si}‘lc Colar ' Plates/VIN Match? ' Plates Missing?
g Sadan, 4 door Black _ M  FRONT - [} REAR [
w | Condition {Check all that apply) j Damage oint of Eatry
——d e
D1 aprARENTLY DRivABLE & BURNED?[] Damagep?[ strippzn? (]| Rtrear tailight N/A L
Tl -
g-j Crime Scene Tech 387 Form Given 1o | Tow Approved By (Name) Star Towed to (Mame/Address) Tow Check (Name) * Sear
Notified? [ Cwner? D :
Hold For y Other Information
_ MISC Vehicle #B1138
Registered Owner Business Mame/Last Nams, First Name . Residence Phone
{5 | CY/CNTY San Francisco _ _ : .
g % Residence Address City Staie Zip Business Fhone
1800 Jerrold Ave ' San Francisco CA 1 o4124-
Code | PlateNo State Reg Yr Plate Type VIN No !
=} 1
=} ;
= { Veh Year -~ |'Moke ' Muodel
=
‘O | Swyie Colar : Plates/VIN Match? Plates Missing?
2 ‘
Z i N} FRONT []- Rear ]
g Condition' (Check all that apply) 7 o ' Damage Point of Enty '
= | apparentLy orivaBLE E] Burnen? [ pamacen?[] sTRiPPED? [] o . , L
Crime Scene Tech 387 Farm Given to | Tow Approved By (Name) Star Towed to (Name/Address) Tow Check (Name)~  Star
Notified? © [ | Owner? O ] A
;| Hold For Other Informatien
! .
, | Registered Owaer Business Name/Last Mame, First Name Residence Phone
24 ’ ' '
m] 1 . _
Z ‘
= | Residence Address City State - Zip * - |'Business Fhone
3 .
Code PlueNo " | Statz Reg YT Plate Type VIN No
i Vc}: ¥r Make Model
CZ:‘, (X} “ .
E Style W, Color : Plates/VIN Maich? Plates Missing?
= o O rrowt [ rear [
o= T . "
E Condition (Chesk all thn_t npply) ' Damage pint of Entry
= AF'PARENTLYD_RNABLE D BUIRNED? D DAMAGED? E] STRIPPED? D L
u - : -
g [Crime Scene Tech. | 387 Form Givento | Tow Approved By (Name} Star Towed to (Name/Address) | Tow Check (Mame)}  Swar
T [Notified? [] | Owne? O
i
= | Hold Far Other information
MISC Vehicle #B1139
. Registered Owner Business Mame/Last Name, First Name Residence Phone
w
=z .
_g_ Residence Address City State Zip Business Phone
Page 8 of 12
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oo S&@rrancisco Police Department® ,
050764676 NARRATIVE . :

On 07/08/2005 at approximately 21:51 Hrs, Officer Shields #1924 and | were on patrol in full

gun'rform and driving a marked ﬁ?olige“\fehic!e.. We were dispatéhe_d (CAD# S051894145) to thle area
& of *22nd and Mission Street regarding a large group of thirty of more protesters hitting windows to
businesses with bats.” While enroute we were informed that “the group were throwing frashcans

and newspapers in the street and destroying businesses and vehicles in the area.” There was also
an additional update that “the group was threatening people.*

it should be n'_cjted that durihg this evening in the Mission District there was a demonstration at
16th Street and Mission Street that turned into a march (See CAD #051893424). '

Upon Officer Shields and [ arriving at 23rd and Valencia Street, we observed 5-10 individuals
wearing dark clothing at the corner of 23rd Street and Valencia Street. Some of these' protesters
were wearing masks to cover their faces. Several members of this group were dragging metal
objects from the north side of 23rd Street out into both langs of traffic. As Officer Shieldsand|
came closer we noticed that the metal objects appeared fo be hewsstands. In response to this
Officer Shields activated our vehicle's emergency lights and-made a left tum onto E/B 23rd Street-
from S/B Valencia Street to investigate whether or notrthes:e were the suspects listed in-our call for,

r

service.
" . . A‘ . .
ids and | observed the small group of 5-10 individuals

- R | . [
Upon entering E/B 23rd Street, Officer Shie .
t. Officer Shields and | immediately drove behind

running E/B on 23rd Street towards Bartlett Sireet.
these individuals with our emerdency fights an iri dn attempt to detain them for the malicious

mischief vandalism that we witnessed them conduct at 23rd and Valencia Street. We also intended
1o detain these individuals, due to the fact they may be the suspects in our call for service. As
.Ofﬁcer Shields ahd | drove closer to these individuals we found ourselves mid block on 23rd Street
between Barilett and Valencia Street. The original group of 5-10 individuals that fled from us, led
Officer Shields and | into a much larger group of approximately 100 protesters. Officer Shields and |
* did not notice this large crowd upon turning onto 23rd Street due to the fact that the area is sparsely
iluminated by streetlights and the main body of the crowd was half a block away from us,

i

Upon Officer Shields and | arriving at the crowd, the 5-10 individuals Officer Shields and [ were
attempting to detain, quickly integrated into the larger group of protesters. For reasons of Officer
safety, Officer Shields and | remained in our patrol unit and did not pursue the original 5-10 '
vandalism suspects into the crowd of protesters. At this point Officer Shields and | decided to move
the crowd onto the sidewalks to aliow our free travel E/B on 23rd Street. The effect our emergency
fights had on the crowd, was that approximately 1/3 of the protesters moved onto the sidewalks.

The remaining crowd of protesters refused to yield to our presence and remained in the street

blocking our path.

Much of the remaining crowd were wearing dark clothing and covering their faces with masks.
Erom my training and experience | recognized these protesters as possible members of an anarchist
group called “Black Block.” Members of "Black Block™ have a long documented history of viclence
and vandalism. Due to these reasons, Officer Shields and | feared for out safety and began io
proceed forward in an attempt to move to a safe area to avoid being targeted by this group. Moving
forward was our anly option due to several members of the group beginning to flank our vehicle.

--Due to the fact that the protesters began to surround our Police vehicle, Officer Shields verbally

stated to me "Mike, as soon as we hit Bartlett we're out of hera.”
Officer Shields atiempted to proceed forward towards Bartlett until (B-3) John Doe yelled
something to the crowd. J. Doe’s statement to the crowd drew immediate attention towards Officer

Inridant# N50764676 Page 9 of 12



iking the right front fender of our f@#ol unit with a (E-8) very

Shields and 1. J. Doe then begavg
|large styrofoam sign. This placed J. Doe between Officer Shields and | and our only route of
escape Officer Shields cautiously began moving forward towards Bartlett Street until J. Doe placed

the (E -11 Photo) very large styrofoam sign directly under our patrof unit. This immediately
incapacitated our patrol vehicle allowing numerous members of the protesters, which included
suspected members of "Black Block” to converge on our Police vehicle. J. Doe in addition to other
members of the rioting crowd began yslling statements to the effect of “get the Police.” After J. Doe
effectively incapacitated our Police vehicle, [ informed Officer Shields that | would gxit the vehicle to
take .. Doe into custody for hitting our vehicle and to prevent him from ingiting further vielence from

the crowd, Officer Shield replied back to me “go ahead.” -

n exiting our Police car J. Doe looked directly at me began to run E/B on 23rd

fett. | pursued J. Doe onio the south sidewalk of 23rd Street and quickly caught
Bartletf and 23rd Street. | grabbed onto the back of J. Doe and
" Numerous members of the protesters observed J. Doe flee

from me. Some of thesé protesters began'yelling “run!” In dddition to these statements an unknown
number of protesters began to grab onto my extremities and my depariment issued baton. My baton
was in my right hand when this occurred. | was able to overcome the crowds attempt to lynch J.

Doe and | effectively maintained a physical grip of his body. J. Doe’s reaction to my order {o “stop”
and he's:-“under arrest” was to continue pulling away from me and on at least one occasion yell

he protester to the effect of "help me!” | perceived J. Doe’s statement of “help mel” as
a direct plea to the rioting crowd fo lynch him. My reaction to J. Doe's physical and verbal resistance
was to puil his,body to the ground. | pulled him'to the ground in an effort to overcome his resistance -
and to prevent his attempted escape from me.- This drove my left knee into the cement sidewalk

causing an injury (E-1 1) to my left knee and damage to my (E-9) pants. _

Immediately upo
Street towards Bart
up with him near the S/W comer of
told him to “stbp, you're under arrest.

something to t

 'Once on the ground J. Doe immediately atternpted to stand back up. As | struggled with J. Doe'|

.felt at least one rioter start puliing on my legs.  As this occurred as | heard the crowd yell, “get him”,
"lat him go!” and “run!” The puiling on my legs started to draw me back from J. Doe who was still

mself.by pushing up with both his hands and thrashing his legs. During J. Doe's -
owd of rioters considerably increased in size and | thought that
they might become successiul in freeing J. Doe from my custody. Keeping this in mind, | attempted
to incapacitate J. Doe via Carotid Restraint and attempt to place him in handcuffs to extricate him
from the roting crowd. | made the attempt to place J. Doe into a Carotid Restraint using my left arm
while maintaining grip of my baton. | reached around J. Doe with my left arm in an attempt to
position him for the Carotid Restraint. Prior to being able to administer the Carotid Restraint,
members of the crowd began to approach us. Numerous rioters began yelling, “stop choking him!”,
2" As these statements were being made, numerous rioters converged
ontb my location. Due to the fact that | was on the ground, the rioters had a position of advantage
over me, | raised my baton to a high ready position in order to defend myself from the advancing .
crowd. -Several of these rioters made statements to the effect of fight!” and “get up!” These '
statements were directed at J. Doe who was not yet subdued. Due o the fact that the approaching
rioters had a position of advantage over me and one of them was armed with a stick, and because |
had to raise my baton to a high ready position, | was forced to abandon my attempt to apply a

Carotid Restraint on J. Doe.

afternpting to free hi
personal efforts to resist arrest, the cr

“Why are you choking him

| positioned my body to face the attackers in an attempt to protect J. Doe and myself. | then
defended myself from the approaching attackers by forcing my bodyweight on J. Doe to keep him on
~the ground while maintaining a high ready position with my department issued 26-inch baton. As the
Eaﬁackers closed in on J. Doe ahd me, | extended my baton at them and verbally directed themfo
“get back." The results of my verbal and physical actions towards the attackers kept them at bay
long enough for me to request immediate assistance via radio. | swung my baton back and forth to
keep a safe distance betwaen myself and the rioters who | believed were going 10 physically assault

me. | do not believe that my baton made contact with any of the advancing protestors.
N Page 10 of 12
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~ Duaring this time [ heard the sound of fireworks coming from the location of our patrof vehicle. |
also saw a large amount of smoke coming from that area. Due to being on the ground behind
parked vehicles and the fact that | was in a contihuous struggle with J. Doe and the oncoming

alioters, 1'was only capable of makiny 'short radio transmissions. This sévereiy delayed my request

B0 immediate assistance and taused me io be physically engaged with the J. Doe and the rioters for
an extended amount of timé. SFSD ESU Senior Deputy Choi and several other SFSD Deputies
noticed a crowd near the intersection of 23rd Streét-and Barilett and immediately responded. Upon
their arrival at my location Sr. Deputy Choi immediately ran over and assisted me in trying to take J.
Doe into custody. As Sr. Deputy Choi and | tried to handcuff J. Doe, he repeatedly pulled his hands
away from-our grip. | utilized my department issued baton to pry J. Doe's right arm out from
underneath his body and Sr.-Deputy Choi'and | handcuffed him. As Sr. Deputy Choi and [ were
taking J. Doe into custody, the.other Deputies were keeping the rioters at bay to prevent any further
assault by them (see written statements for specific.details). | also over heard an unknown

individual state that “there is_ an Officer down, down the street.” .

~ Once Sr. Deputy Choi and | had J. Doe in custody the pthér SFSD Deputies responded E/B on *
23rd Street to-investigaie the report on an-“Officer Down.” Sr. Deputy Choi and | remained and we
instructed J. Doe to stand-up. J. Doe did not comply and Sr. Deputy Choi and | were forced to pick
J. Doe up and walk him over to an awaiting SFSD wagon. As we walked J. Doe over to the SFSD
wagon, J. Doe stopped walking on his own accord and we' had to carry him to the wagon. Once at
the SFSD wagon Sr.. Deputy Choj conducted a quick arrest search of J. Doe’s person and we
insfructed him to get into the back of the wagon. J. Doe remained limp and refused to enter the
SFSD wagon. in.response St. Deputy Choi and | picked J. Doe off the ground-and placed him in the
rear of the SFSD wagon feet first and | closed the inner door behind him. | did not observe any
visible injuries on J. Doe and he did not.complain of any pain as a resuit of being taken to the ground

_ or carried to the wagon.

Now that J. Doe was secure in the rear of the SFSD wagon, | immediately ran to the location
where there had been a report of an “Officer Down.” Upon my arrival I saw several [aw enforcement
Officers huddled around my partner, Officer Peter Shields #1924 (E-11 Photos). Officer Shields.was
bleeding profusely from the back of his head and his shirt and pants were saturated with blood.
Underneath where Officer Shields was laying was a large pool of blood that run off his head and '
onto the ground. Several of the Law-Enforcement personne! were equipped with first aid kits and
were rendering aid to Officer Shields. Sr. Deputy Ramirez #1486 removed Officer Shields (P-1) duty
belt and (P-2) firearm and handed them to me. | took Officer Shields duty belt and firearm back to
our patrol unit and secured it inside the vehicle. | then requested a SFSD deputy to guard our patroi

car.

! retumned to Officer Shields location as the ambulance persennel were placing him in the rear of
the ambulance. | then entered the Ambulance and rode with Officer Shields to SFGH. At SFGH the
emergency staff treated Officer Shields for a 3" laceration to his scalp which required 7 staples.
Upon the SFGH staff conducting a MRI of Officer Shiélds brain they located an “intra cranial
hematoma® caused from the impact to his head. The SFGH Emergency staff stated that they would
need to monitor Officer Shields for a minimum of 24hrs before they could release him. Officer
Shields is currently (07-09-2005 / 18:00 Hrs) in stable condition and scheduled for a follow-up MR
on the moming of 07-10-2005 to see if the “intra cranial hematoma” is healing.

While | was with Officer Shields at SFGH | was able to get a very brief statement from him
regarding his injuries. Officer Shields stated to me that after | left our patral vehicle to pursue J.
= Doe. A {S-Unk) described as a tall white male wearing a black mask pointed a pyrotechnic device at
Officer Shields and lit the fuse. Shortly thereafter, Officer Shields saw and heard a "missile like"
object come directly at him. Officer Shields immediately exited his vehicle and approached (S-Unk).
Officer Shields atternpted to take (S-Unk) into custody. (S-Unk) resisted Officer Shields attemnpts to
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take him into custody resulting in @'lcer Shields delivering several blo%& to (S-Unk’s) zone 1 arms
physically engaged with (S-Unk) another (S-Unk)

and zone 2 legs. As Officer Shields was
approached Officer Shields from behind and struck him at least oncs one the back of the head with
a blunt object. When | interviewed Officer Shields he was in severe pain and medicated and was

' aanl0f able to give me more detail. Officer Shields wil be interviewed on a later date by the SFFD
&%enerai Work detail. Far a-deiailed account of the aggravated assauit on Officer Shields please

refer to the General Work Inspector's chronological.

Additionally while | was at SFGH Sgt Beazley #2073 informed me of the following. After Officer

Shields and | exited our patrol unit members of the.riot broke out the (D-1) right.rear taillight of our

(D) vehicle. The same group of rioters then ignited pyrotechnic devices underneath our patrol car in
e had been established

an attempt to ignite the entire vehicle. |was aiso informed that a crime scen :
and a (E-1) crime scene log was maintained. After the crime scene was established C8!, Insp. G.

Mar, responc!ed and processed the scene for evidence.

Polick station and informed 3D200 Sgt. Kaprosch #1 289 of the
in the above incident. Sgt. Kaprosh explained 1o me that there

were two additional suspects in custody. Sgt. Kaprosh went on to state that he ahd Officer'Kane
#4226 were attempting o render assistance to Officer Shields when (B-1) Cody Tarlow blocked their
path and attempted to strike (W-5) Officer Kane #4226 with a closed fist. Sgt. Kaprosh took control
of C. Tariow's clenched fist and took him lo the ground. Once on the ground Sgt. Kaprosh with the
assistance of Sgt. Beazley #2073 took C. Tarlow into custody despite his resistance (see Sgt.
Kaprosch and Officer Kane's statement for specific details). Sgt. Kaprosh also explained to me that
the third suspect (B-2) Doritt Emst was taken into custody by Officer Lozano #554 and Officer Lee

#469. . | |

| 'sppke with Officer Lozano and Lee about their participation in taking D. Emnst into custody.
'Ofﬁcer Lozano stated that upon arriving at Officer Shields location they were attempting to clear the.
area to establish a crime scene. Upon Officer Lozano ordering D. Emst fo leave the crime scene
d to D. Emst's statement by physically -

she replied "l don't have to move!" Officer Lozano reacte _
assisting her out of the crime scene. D. Ernst response was to immediately grab Officer Lozano’s =
36" baton.that he was hoiding in his right hand and removing it from his hand. Officer Lozano, with

the assistance of Officer Dempsky #471, brought D. Emnst fo the ground where she was taken into -
custody despite her resistance (see Officer Dempsky's and Officer Lozano's statement for specific

details).

At this point | returnéd to Mission
i foree used by Officer Shields and me

of force investigation and made a log entry into the use of force
t processed by C.S.1. or collected onscene by the General Work
inspectors Chin and Militello responded to Mission

heir interviews, subjects (B-1), (B-2), and (B-3)

Sgt. Kaprosh conducted his use

log at Mission Station. Evidence no

* Inspectors, was booked at Mission Station.

Station and-teok over the investigation. Based upon t
were booked on the above listed charges.

—r
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SAN FRANGISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT

Coe
""" INCIDENT REPORT STATEMENT

paqe-1 of o

INCIDENT NO. _
0[5]0]7]6]4] . L
B AME [LAST, FIRST, MIDOLE)Y OF PERSON GIVING STATEMENT DCE/AGE REGIDENCE PHONE (DAY [ NIGHT) BUSINESS FHONE (DAY/MIGHT)
APROSCH,ROBERT A. : () (415) 558-5400
RESIDENCE ADDRESS / CIFY IF NOT SAN FRANCISCO . ZiP CODE HUSINESS ADORESS / CITY [F NOT SAN FRANCISCO 2P CODE —
R l C ._ N 630 VALENGIA ST , 94110 .
DATEOF STATEMENT ] TIME STARTED TIME COMPLETED LOCATION WHERE STATEMENT TAKEN . .o
2/8/05 .| 220 uRs 235 vRs ATSCENE [ ] OTHER: MISSION STATION
STATEMENT TAKEN BY (MAME/ ETAR) "IN PRESENCE OF i . : -
SGTRUBINO #448 SGT BEAZLEY #2073 -
T N B . " . i
(5n-0?108105 at ép_proximately'2145 hrs, Sgt. Beazley #2073 and | responded o 23" St and Bartlett
: ssistance. As we arrived on the scene we -

st on the repert of an offi

chserved a white male wearing yellow pa

refusing to let Officer Kane #4226 tend to Offi
: < head. The male, later identified as Cody Tarlow, t

anner, with Officer Kane directly in front of him. Officer Kane's
Shields lying.on the ground. When Talow's hand was over his head,
took hjm to the ground in handcuffing position. Sgt Beazley and |

poo! of hlood under hi

over his head in-a threatening m
attention was focused-on Officer
| grabbed it with my. right hand and
placed him imhandcuffs and he was

ter requesting emergency &

nts, a black shirt and a black bandana over h_islface;

cer Pete Shields, who was lying on the ground with a
hen raised his right hand

transported back to Mission Station for further investigation.

Tarlow did not complain of any pain at the scene.

ey

| DECLARE UHGER PENALTY OF PURIURY. TH

SIGNATURE OF PERSON GIVING STATEMENT

1S STATEMENT OF l'

PAGES IS TRUE AND CORRECT, BASED &N MY FERSONAL KNOWLEDGE.
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INCIDENT REPORT STATEMENT

SAN FRANCISCO POLIGE DEPARTMENT
INCIDENT NO. . . . . page 1 o .
(o]5jol716]4[6[7]&l . . _
ME (LAST, FIRST, MIDDLE) OF PERSON GIVING S'TATEP'-!EWT DOB/AGE RESIDENCE PHONE {DAY / NIGHT) | BUSINESS PHONE (DAY /NIGHT)
FPD/ KANE#4226. . ' - () (415) 553-1373 .-
RESIDENCE ADDFESS / CITY JF NOT SAN FRANCISCO 4P CODE BUSINESS ADDRESS / CITY IF NQOT SAN FRANCISCO ZIP CODE
REFUSED L 1| 850 BRYANT 3T. - 194110.
DATE.OF STATEMENT TIME STARTED TIME GOMPLETED LOCATION WHERE STATEMENT TAKEN ‘ :
7/9/05 115uRs ' | 145wRs AT SCENE OTHER: MISSION POLICE STATION

STATEMENT TAKEN BY {NAME STAR) N PAESENCE OF
T2 B S .

On 67108/2005 at approximately 2157 hrs my partner Officer Elias #593 and | responclied to 23rd St.

and Bartlett St; with 3D20D Ofiicer Ewins #733 on a call of an officer needing emergency assistance.

Upan arrival at the scene. | observed 3816D Officer Shields #1924 sitting on ihe ground mid block on
23rd St. between Mission St. and Bartlett St. Officer Shield had his back against 2 small pickup

truck. | observed a.small crowd of people around Officer Shields. One man was squatting in front of
Officer Shields filming him. | also observed that Officer. Shields was siumped over and bleeding

profusely from his- head. - -

As | exited the patrol vehicle | observed a man standing 'a‘pp'roximately two feet from Officer Shields.
As. | attempted to render aid o Offlcer Shields the man, later identified as Tarlow, was squared off to
me, blocking my path to Officer Shields. i ordered Tariow to move. Tarlow stood his ground. | then
identified myself as a police officer ‘ang ordered Tarlow to move again. Tarlow then took several
. steps towards me at which time | pushed him with my two hands to his chest to move him away from
me. Tarlow then made a statertient that was unintelligi
tiempt to-punch me. 3D107 Sqt. Kaprosch #1288 came up behind Tarlow, grabbed his-arm, and
grevented him from striking me. 38119 Sgt. Beazley #2073 and Sgt. Kaprosch then took Tarlow inta
It shouid be noted that Tarlow was wearing a black bandana covering

custody despite his resistance.
the lower haif of his face but his multi-colored dreadlocks were clearly visibie. Tarlow was wearing a

black sweatshirt with yellow pants.

t

| DECLARE, UNDER PENALTY OF PURIURY, THIS STATEMENT GF ! eaces 15 TRUE AND CORRECT, BASED ON MY PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE.
SIGNATURE OF EERSCH GIVING STATEMENT J\j = L P e P ;‘\,é
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ble to. me and cocked his fist backwards inan



INCIDENT REPORT STATEMENT

SAN IF.HANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT
INGIDENT NO. ' o
0]5]/0]7]6]4]16]7]16]

AME (LAST, FIRST, MIDDLE) OF PERSON GIVING STATEMENT , DOB/AGE RESIDENCE PHONE (DAY / MIGHT) | BUSINESS PHONE {DAY/MIGHT) -

EMPSKY, JuLIus () (415) 553 0123 <~
AESIDENCE ADDRESS / CITY IF NOT SAN FRANGISCO ' ZIP CODE BUSINESS ADDRESS / CITY IF NOT SAN FRANCISCO 2IP CODE

' . - , i 630 VALENCIA-ST . 84110 .

DATE G STATEMENT TIME STARTED TIME COMPLETED LOCATION WHERE STATEMENT TAKEN ' C :
7/8/05 . ., ] 0020 Hms HRs. . | ATSCENE []  OTHER: '
STATEMENT TAKEN BY [MAME / STAR) iN PRESENCEQF . '

On 07-08-2005 at 2158hrs | responded to the area of 23rd and Barlett Streets to assist Officer
Shields, who was struck over the head by someone from the demonstration. Upon arrival | saw
Officer Shields sitting against a truck. He was holding his head and there was a large amount of

. blood on his uniformand the street aroutid him. On the sidewalk behind Officer Shields | saw Officer
L ozano struggling with a female walking & bike. | saw the female push Officer Lozano. Officer

Lozano grabbed the female, who pulled away from him. | ran over to Officer Lozano to assist him.

The female resisted our attempts to detain her. She pulled and spun away from us. With the help of

other unknown Officer the female was taken to the ground, where she continued to resist us and

struggle. She'was eventually placed into flex cuffs. | left the female in the custody of anather Officer
and as'sistéd' other Officers m_aintain the crime scene at 23rd and Bartlett Streets.

While s’ta;j_diﬁg onrline, | was approached by Sgt Rubine # 448, who adyised me to intemiéwr some
witnesses of the assault on Officer Shields. ... - o E

e spoke to (W ) Dante A Esparza, : ‘ . .
e e S/ IR Csparza stated that he was onthe
sqeond floor of et (ocking out of the front windows. He heard pecple running and
commotion coming from the street. Esparza saw a police officer chasing someone from the
sidewalk, in front of ) into the street. Esparza saw the police officer.irying to take the
persbn, he was chasing, into custody. A crowd surrounded the officer and began yeliing, “Let him
S)-suspect walked out of the crowd, toward the officer and hit the officer on the head with a

go.” The ( ‘
hat the stick was approximately 12 inches long. After being struck on

black stick: Esparza stated t 7
the head the officer stumbled and fell to the ground. The person the officer was trying to arrest got

up and fled East on 23rd street. The suspect who hit the officer and the crowd fled East on 23rd
S;reet. Esparza described the person who assauited Officer Shields as a white male, 25-30 years
old. 6'5 170 wearing a black beanie, black t-shirt, black pants. Esparza stated that there'was a
bald Asian mgle who videotaped the incident. The bald Asian male also fled east on 23rd street.

el . - = ——— s Higareda siated that he was in
the front roorn of his residence and heard a loud noise coming from the street. Higareda looked out
the window and saw a group of guys and girls running down the street throwing garbage cans..
Higareda saw a man throw a garbage can info the street. A palice officer came o arrest the man,
who threw the garbage can into the street.  As the officer tried to arrest the man, the (S} suspect hit

the cop on the head with a black stick that appeared to be heavy. The officer fell and let go of the
person he was trying to arrest. The suspect that hit the officer and the man the officer was {rying to

| spoke to (W ) Huge Higareda, @l

| DECLARE, UNDER PENALTY OF PURIURY, THIS STATEMENT OF, PAGES IS TRUE AND CCRRECT, BASED ON MY PERSONAL KNOWLEDEE.
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SAN FRANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT INCIDENT REPORT 574 TEMENT
INCIDENT NO. paga 2 o, rl—e
arrest fled sast on 23rd streetldnth Lhe crowd. ngareda described the suspect who struck Officer
@nields as a white male with black spiked hair, weanng all black. !
b 1

Inspector Chin from General Work arrived and spok'e to Esparz‘a and Higareda.

'
! ]

| DEGLARE, UNDER PENALTY OF PURIURY, THIS STATEMENT OF < ~PAGES 1S THUE AND COARECT, BASED ON MY FERSONAL KNOWLEDGE.

SIGNATURE OF PERSON GIVING STATEMENT _,————QUI P\/g_,‘i; <
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SAN FRANGISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT INCIDENT REPORT STATEMENT

"INCIDERNT NO, page 1ot .
éulslﬂlvlslﬂsl?lel | . |

AHE (LAST, FIRST, MIDDLE) OF FERSON GIVING STATEMENT GOB/AGE RESIDENCE PHONE (DA'{I NIGHT} BUSINESS PHONE (DAY:’NJGHT)
LOZANO, ANGEL G #554 ' f ' ] {415) 558-5400 {415) 558-5400 ~

RESIDENCE ADDRESS / CTY IF NOT SANFRANCISCO ZIP COBE BUSINESS ADDRESS / CITY IF NOT SAN FRANCISCO ZF CoRE
B30-VALENCIA -] 94110 o

DATEICIF STATEMENT TIME STARTED TIME COMFLETED [ LOCATION WHERE STATEMENT TAKEN *

7/9/05 110 1rs HRS ATSCENE [ 1  OfHER:COD .

STATEMENT TAKEN BY (NAME / STAR) ° ! ‘IN PRESENCE DF -

QOfc. Lee #469 and | responded to an emergency assistance call from 3D16D Ofc Shields #1924 and
Ofc Wolfe#1568. When we arrived, we noticed that Ofc. Shields was on the ground and bleeding
from the head'from an assault. Ofc. Shields was also half cgnscious. There were still numerous
people still in the area so [ started to clear out the crime scene along with other officers as other
officers rendered aid to Ofc. Shields. As | atternpted to clear out the crime scene where Ofc! Shields
was assaulted, | came across later identified Ernst who was standing in the area of the ciime scene.
| ordered her to move out of the crime scene and she refused by stating “l don't have to move”". As |
started te assist her in leaving the area of the crime scene by holding onto her bike and moving her
aside, she'pus:hed me on my right shoulder with her left hand. With her left hand, she grabbed iny

~ 36" baton that | was holding in my right hand. | immediately grabbed her and pulled to the ground

~ with the assistance of Ofc. Dempsky #471. She continued to resist our attempts to take her into
custody by swinging her arms around to try and get free of our grasp but we were eventually able to

place flex cuffs on.Emst and take herinto custody. :

5

. o
| DECLARE UNDERPENALTY OF PURIURY THIS STATEMENTOE.—- L. PAGES IS TRUE AND CORRECT BASED ON MY PERSCNAL KNOWLEDGE -

PR T ey
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SAN FRANGISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT INCIDENT REFORT, S"i’A TEMENT
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ol7le[dc|7]4]

pago___
5T FASE, M[DDL:)OF P'=F15CFN GIVING 5TAT] EMEN'T " DOE!AG:

RESIDENCE PHONE {CAY { NIGHT) |AUSINESS FHCINE {DAYINIGHT)
L, Tn) "‘frz; - 'S F50D. Ho/cg 34 |\ 856-22y 3 /
ENC:E ADﬂ SfC[T‘r IF ~OT SAN FRANCISCD

yrs ’7-.'?";( '2-32.(

2P CODE

) ZIF CODE

EUW‘\IESS ADDRESS T CITY IF NOT SAN FRANCIECD

M JDTIME co%fmu LOCATION WHEHE/ ;ﬁﬂ'gﬁhﬂ TAKEN S7 LEET $ ?’/D ?
l o 13 s IATSCEHE [:j

-/ 5T ofer: (__ey ! Y
ST. X ET\'T TAKEN BY [NAME/STAR) - ] IN PRESENCE QF i
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J TYPE OF CASE

GASE NO. VICTIM
Officers Shields and Walf

® ragr. Assaut o'n P. O/Lync:hmg 050764676 - :
) i INSPECTOR ASSIGNED

DATE

Friday, July 08, 2005

ky DETAL
General Work . « | S.Chin #847

"DATE | TIME

ACTIVITY

7/8/2005

2215

Received a call from Operatlon Center regarding an assauit on a Police Officer

by protesters

2220

Calied Off, Yamagucﬁl #197’3 who briefed me on the incident. Off. Yamaguchi
advised me that there was a protest in the Mission District and Officer thelds ,

#1924 was struck on the head. Réquested for me to respond

2225

Received a call from Insp Militelio #273 who informed me that she was enroute

to the hOE‘QI'[al

2245

Responded to the.scene. AT THE SCENE: There was police vehicle facing -
eastbound on 23" St, almost at Bartlett St. with a large piece of foam under the -
front tires. The right front tire was on top of the foam. Theré was an
extingujshed flare, which burned part of the foam, lying near the right front tire
of the pelice vehicle. There-were big,pieces of concréte, shaped rocks under
the VEthf$ The right rear taiilight was broken with a piece of concrete rock -

‘ embe’dded inside the light panel. Approximately B7 yards east of the vehicle, in-

front of 3337 23" St. , there was a pool of blood on the street with bandages

| and a scaif with the number #1924, On the sidewalk, in front of 3335 231 gt

there was a bicycle lying on its side. .-

- 2300.
- - | advised me Officer Shields and Wolf were responding to a call when one of the

Met with Sgt.'Kaprosch #1289 who briefed me on the mc:dent Sgt Kaprosch

protesters threw a large piece of foam under their vehicle. They began to
surround their vehicle. Officer Wolf #1568 exited the vehicle and attempted to
take B/Doe;John into custody Officer Shields ran after the protesters and
atternpted to take one in custody.. While Officer Shields struggled with
S1/unknown, a protester, S2/unknown, ‘approached Off. Shields from behind
and struck him on the back of the head with an object.

2315

Met with Insp. Mar#b47 from CS| and conducted a walk through the crime
scene. Requested that he take photos of the scene and collect evidence

2345

Met and conducted a taped interview with W1/ Hugo Higareda who advised

me the following:
-1 live at RSy | heard some loud noises and banglng coming from the

streets. | looked out my bedroom window, which faces 23™ St. and saw a
bunch of people yelling and throwing the garbage bins on the street. Then |-
saw a police officer grab one of the S1 /guys who was throwing the garbage bin
and attempted to arrest him. While he was struggling with him, the crowd was
yelling let him go. Then another guy S2/ walked up fo the police officer and
struck him on the head with a black piece of metal or stick. The officer fell
down and got back up. $1/82 and the group of people ran eastbound on 23™
towards Mission St. S2/ was white guy wearing all black and head spike hair

7/9/05

e

0005

Met and conducted a taped interview with W2/ Dante Esparza who toid me the

following:

= | was visiting my friend Hugo at s when | heard some loud
commotion outside. As | looked out of the bedroom window, which faces 23"

St., | saw a large crowd of people banging on things and throwing garbage
cans on the street. Then | saw and Officer jump over the parked car and grab
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ACTIVITY

-

‘@l DATE | TIME

on the of the protesters S1/. While he struggled with S1/, the crowd surrounds
the officer and hegins to push him. 52/ walks up and hits the officer on the
head with a black stick . The officer stumbles and falls to the ground.. .$1/52

| and the crowd fled'eastbound on 23 St. towards Mission St. ' '

0015

Canvas the area for additional witnesses and physical evidence but to no avail.
Spoke with some individuals who advised me that they saw large group of
people screaming and banging on parked vehicles but didn't see the assaulton

Officer Shields. ‘

0030

Responded to SFGH and met with Officer Wolf who told me the following:

- Officers Shields and | were responding to a glass breaking call, when | saw a
group of protesters throwing newspaper racks onto the street. We followed and
they led us to a larger group of protesters walking in the middle of the street
eastbound on 23" St. We activated our lights and sirens but the protesters
refused to get off the street, therefore, we could not drive our vehicle through. —
-Some of the protesters moved while others refused to compiy with our lights
and sirens. B1/who was holding a large piece of white foam, began to strike
our vehicle with it B1/ then threw it under the vehicle which disabled the car |
exited the vehicle and chased after B1/ | grabbed B1/ on the sidewalk near the
southeast corner of 23™ St at Rartlett. - ,
- B1/ refused to comply with my demands and continued struggling and =~
resisting. While on the ground with B1, | was being punched and kicked by the
protesters. | began 1o swing my baton to keep the crowd away from me and -~
from being assaulted by the protesters '

- | never lost sight of B1. The crowd backed off and a couple of Sheriffs
Deputies arrived and helped me take B1 into custody. | received a scrape on

‘my left knee, :

0035 -

Officer Shields received a 2-inch laceration to thé_back of his head. In stable
condition. Unable to interview at this time . .

0040

Received a bag from Off. Ewins #733 containing a bloody baton. Also
received 4 polaroid photos and a diskette from Sgt. Andraychak#457

(attached to case file)

0045

Responded to Mission Station. Met and conducted a taped interview with
B3/Ernst, D. She stated the following:

- | was at 16™ and Mission, when | saw a protest group gathering. | saw my
friend there and | asked him what the protest was about. He told me the anti-
war demo. | stayed and joined the Anarchist group ‘
-1 was at 23™ St and | heard "officer down" and | was on the bicycle. There
were a lot of people around me. This officer told me to move along and | had
one hand on my bicycle and ! swung my left arm. Then | was taken to the

ground and arrested

0100

Met with Officer Lozano#554 who told me the following:

-1 responded to 23" St. and Bartlett to assist Officer Shields who was struck on
the head. Upon arrival, | saw that Officer Shields was bleeding and there were
still a large group in the area

- | began to move people out of the crime scene and to protect Officer Shield
who was half-conscious. | made contact with B3/Doritt who was on her bike. |

SFPD 208 (10/78}
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ACTIVITY

é DATE | TIME

[
1 1
.

asked her to mave along but she r'e_ﬁis’ed; She stated, "l don't have to move.”

| - I asked B3/Daritt fo move and assisted her by pushing the bike along. B3/’

pushed me with her left hand ahd grabbied my baton away from me. | took her
to the ground with Officer Dempsky #471 assistance..B3/ was taken into

custody. (see statement) .’

0115

Met and conducted a taped interview with B2/Tarlow, G., who stated the

following: : -
- About a half block away from where | was arrested, | was being a neutrai
observer watching a kid being arrested by an officer. 1 then hear "officer down"
and a bunch of officers ran down the street _ .
- | dlso:began to walk down the street, then | see the bioody officer. Then an
officericomes charging at me. The officer shoves me back and tells me to get
back . :

- |- raise my arms up and [ was pushed back to the wall. Then | was thrown .
down by other officers and put in‘avan

®

0730

Met ahd spoke with Officer Kane #4226 who stated the following:
- [ was responding to the area of 23" St and Bartlett on the assault on Officer
Shields. Upor arrival, | could see that Officer Shieds was bleeding and

leaning againstacar ~ _ .
- 1 rushed over to assist Officer Shields. B2/Bartlow was standing 2 feet from

| Officer Shiefds and would not move out of the way. [ told him to move and he

squared off at me.:

‘| - | pushed B2/ away and he raised his fist as to hit me. Sgt. Kaprosch and Sgt.

Beazley assisted me taking B2/ to the ground and in custody
(see statement) L

0145

Met with Deputy Sheriffs Choi #1121, Manalang #1347 and ARamirez#’l 486
advised'them to write statements o

0200

Spoke with with Deputy Sheriff Choi #1121 who advised me the following:
- I was assigned to support the SFPD with prisoner transport.” While on
Valencia St, | heard a call of 10-25 and | responded to 23™ St. at Bartlett. Upon
arrival, t saw smoke coming from the front of the police vehicle. | exited the
vehicle and saw Officer Wolf on the ground struggling with B1 /Meyers. | ran
over to Officer Wolf and. assisted him take B1/Mevers into custody.

“While struggling with B1/Meyers , a large crowd began o approach us.
Deputy Sheriff Ramirez kept the crowd back . B1/ Meyers refused to comply
with our demands and kept resisting all the way to the transport vehidle. (see

all statement)

0230

Met with B1/Meyers who told me that his name was John Doe and he did not
want to talk with me

0300

Received statements from all parties involved in the incident (attached to case
file)

0315

Spoke with 8gt. Kaprosch and he stated the following:

- | responded to 23" St and Bartlett with Sat. Beazley #2073 on a call of
Officer back-up. Upon arrival, | saw B2/Tarlow refusing to let Officer Kane tend
to Officer Shields who was lying on the ground under a pool of blood.
B2/Tariow raised his right hand over his head at Officer Kane, | grabbed it and

SFFD 298 (10/76) *
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" ACTIVITY o

Q- DATE l TIME | e , .

took B2/ to the ground. Sgt.. Beazley and I took B2/ into custody

Follow-up

G400
1400

Insp. Milltello responded to SFGH to get condition of Officer Shields.
INJURIES: 3-inch laceration to the back of scalp, recewed 7 staples and
suffered lntracrama}Hematoma '

- Officer Shlelds was still unable to give a complete interview . Oﬁ" icer Shields
dld state that he saw St fthrow a it projectile at the vehicle. He 'sxited the
vehicle and bégan to chase. S1/ -‘While attempting to take S1/intp custody, S2/
struck him'on the head from behind. Officer Shield also recalls seeing and
heannga demonstration “observer” saying, "that's enough, that's enough.”

1600 -

Called RW/3/ Troy, R. who advise me that he was informed to get counsel
befors making any further statements. Further stated that he would call on

Monday to set up and qpporntment for an interview

1645

Met with,Insp. Mar from CSl and handed him the bloody baton for possible
latent pnnts | was advised that he would contact me with resuits

7H005

0700

Received photos and documentation from Insp Militello who retrieved the
information from the Anarchist Webs:te (attached to case ﬁle)

J -

BOOKED: |
GABRIEL MEYERS WM 6/6!77 s _ o

| N/W 245(C) PC

NAW 243(D) PC
NAW 148,10 PC-2CTS

N/W 404.6 (B)PC

N/W 664/405(B) PC

NW 182 PC SRR
N/W 243 (C)PC - |
594(A)(2) PC

CODY TARLOW WM 10/7/83

N/W 245(C) PG
N/W 243(D) PC

N/W 148.10 PC- 2CTS
NV 664/405(B) PC
NAW 182 PC

N/W 455 PC

185 PC

594(A)(2) PC
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ACTIVITY |

ﬁATE | TIMET

i
e

DORITT ERNST WF 05/31/74

N/W 245(C) PC
N/W 243(D) PC

N/W 148.10 PC- 2CTS

N/W 664/405(B) PC

N/W 182 PC

N 455 PC , , ,
148(B) PC

594(A)(2) PC

1000

Reviewed CAD and called ongmal caller JOHN at 889- 3652 and left m message
to call back. Also called Charles Armsirong at 250-5721 and left message to

call back

1130

Spoke with Charies Armstrong who stated the foliowing:

- | was working on Friday night as Muni Supemsor I picked up a group of
protesters walking southbound on Mission St. at 19™ . while | followed them,
they were throwing newspaper racks in the middle of the street stopping the
flow of traffic _

- They also threw paint at the PG&E building.. They were ]USt in the middle of
the street and banging parked cars. | did not see the assault on the Police :
Officer

- | also saw the protesiers throw a big white mattress under a veh:cle on
Mission St. and then | saw it under the Police car too.

1800

'| Received a call from Insp. Militello advising me that Officer Kevin Martm was

ordered by Deputy Chief Suhr to recover a cellphone from above booked
individuals's property :

7111106

0830

Met and discussed case with Captain Cashman #936. | was advised to write
a brief statement regarding reward issued by the Mayor's Office

- 1000

Responded to SFGH and was advised that Officer Shields was discharged on
7{10/2005

1100

Received supplemental report written Gfficer Kevin Martin (attached to case
file)

1415

Received a call from John who called the Poiice during the night of the protest.
John stated the following:

- } was driving northbound on Mission street, when [ noticed a group of people
in both lanes of traffic. They were throwing newspaper racks on the street and
| saw some of the people with basebail bats breaking windows

- | made U-turmn and began to travel southbound on Mission but ran into a Jarge
group of people. | went into Walgreen's and when | came out | looked up 23"
St and saw a large group of people running everywhere

- | heard sirens and saw a police vehicle up the block. | then got back in the

car and left the area

1530

Met and discussed the incident with Special Agents Scott Mermiam and
Suzanne Soloman from the Federal Bureau of Investigations

2015

Special Agent Merriam called Insp. Militello and informed her that due to

SFPN 298 (10761 ~
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ﬁ" DATE | TIME |

R CACTIVITY |

1T ! i
L)

aitempted arson on the Police Veh:cle the Federa[ Bureau of Jnvestlgatlon Wil
be assisting in the investigatioh .

7712106

0900

Received a note from Insp. Correa #766 stating that Kelly Burke from the
District Attorney’s Office recived an anonymous call regarding information of

the suspect who assallted Officer Shields

0830

Responded to DA's office and spoke with Kelly Burke who stated the follawing:
- At approximately 0755 hrs, | received a call from an unknown humber. |

picked up the phone and spoke with a person who stated he had information
regarding the susect whoassaulted Oﬁ' icer Shields '

1100

Responded B Officer Shields Conducted a taped

interview @nd he stated the followmgr

- Officer Wolf and | were responding to a vandalism call. 1 was driving
southbound on Valencia and turmed on 23™ St. There was a Iarge group of
protesters all over the place. | was not able 1o drive through 2395t sl
turned on my red/biue light '

- The protdsters refused to move off the streets and one of the them , later
identified as B/Meyers began to. strike the vehicle with a large white sign.
BiMeyers, then threw the styrofoam undemeath the vehicle, which disabled it |

was not able t0 drive the vehicle
- Officer Wolf jumped out of the car and began to chase B/Meyers. | got out of

| the vehicle and saw a it rocket coming at me. I saw the S1/person throw the

rocket and | chased after him eastbound on 23™ St.

-1 caught S1/ from behind and attempted to take him to custody. S1/was’
resisting and | struck him with my baton. While | was stitking him, | heard a
female voice behind me sayjng, “stop hitting him."

- 1 reached for my handcuffs and | was struck from behind on the back of the
head. | was dazed and felt pain on the left side of my face. | stumbled back
and | heard someone say’, "that's enough.”

- | touched the back of my head and realized | was bleeding from my head. |
looked up and saw a person wearing lime-colored hat ,possible legal observer

who helped me get my radio out

1330

Rebooking package

SFEPD 298 (10/756) *
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AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF COMPLAINT

I, Nasson Walker, Special Agent of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation ("FBI"), United States Department of Justice,
having been duly sworn, do depose and state the following:

I. EXPERIENCE OF AFFIANT AND SUMMARY OF REQUEST

I have been a Special Agent of the FBI since June 2004. I
have been assigned to the Domestic Terrorism squad for the.
Sacramento Division since my arrival in Sacramento in November
2004, and have investigated primarily those matters invelving
environmental terrorism.

Three individuals, Eric MeDawvid, Lauren Weiner, and Zachary
Jenson (the "subjects"™), were arrested on January 13, 2006 for
conspiring to_damage or destroy certain-propérty by explosive or
fire, including the United States Forest Serv1ce Instltute of
Forest Genetics and certain other publicly- and privately-owned
infrastructures, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 844 (n).

Based on my personal participation in this investigation,
discussions with other investigating agents and other law
enforcement agencies, and interviews with reliable witnesses, I
am familiar with the facts and circumstances of this
investigation. The information set forth in this Affidavit
reflects my personal knowledge or has been provided to me by
other law enforcement officers, investigative analysts, and
agents with whom I have spoken, or whose reports I have reviewed.
As this Affidavit is submitted for the limited purpose of
demonstrating probable cause to support a complaint, I have not

included in this Affidavit all information known to me related to

i3
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this investigation and arrest.

1 believe probable cause exists to support a complaint
charging Eric McDavid, Lauren Weiner, and Zachary Jenson with
conspiring to use fire or exXplosives to damage property, in
violation of 1B U.S.C. § 844 (n).

II. USE OF A CONFIDENTIAL SOURCE

The investigation of Eric Mcbavid, Zachary Jenson, and
Lauren Weiner utilizes a Confidential Source (“CS”) who is deeply
embedded within the subjects’ cell. The CS has worked for the
FBI since early 2004. 5S/he has worked for no other agencies and
has no criminal history. The C5 receives compensation for
his/her work with the FBI. The s/he has provided information
that has been utilized in at least twelve separate anarchist
cases. Since July 2005, the Cs has prov1ded lnformatlon about
the subjects and their actlons, and 5/he has participated in
consensual audio and video monitoring, participated in-person
debriefs with law enforcement, and provided electronic summaries
of what s/he has witnessed. The CS’s information has been
corroborated by law enforcement investigation, and his/her
information has proved accurate and reliable. S/he has agreed to
testify in court concerning illegal activity s/he has witnessed.
On December 22,. 2005, the C5 was granted authority to participate
in Tier 1 Otherwise Illegal Activity as part of his/her
involvement in the investigation of Eric McDévid, Zachary Jenson,
and Lauren Weiner.

ITI. OVERVIEW OF THE INVESTIGATION AND SUBJECTS

A. Background of the Karth Liberation Front (“ELF")

The ELF is a recognized eco~terrorist group that advocates

2
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"direct action" (i.e. criminal activity) against targets
identified as contr;buting to the destruction/exploitation of the
Earth and its resources. The ELF is loosely-organized. "Celils"
camprised of a small number of individuals form independently.
These cells then carry out criminal actions on behalf of the ELF.
Environmental extremists under the ELF banner have been known to
use arson and/or explosives to damage or destroy or attempt to
damage or destroy government, commercial, and residential
facilities. Past targets include, but are not limited to, car
dealerships, housing developments, United States Forest Service
facilities, and facilities engaged in genetic engineering
research and development. Since 1987, estimates of damage
inflicted by ELF run in excess of 5100 million.

ELF adherents share =S strong phllosophlcal connection to the
anarchlst movement . The anarchist movement seeks to end the
current syetem of government, economy and replace them with
s?stems characterized by a lack of authoritarian/hierarchical
relationships. A popular source of anarchist thought is
CrimethlInc, an organization that publishes books and
instructional pamphlets that teach anarchist values and tactics.
Evasion, a popular CrimethInc book, describes the life of an
unnamed anarchist who travels by hitchhiking and train-hopping
and who subsists by shoplifting and foraging in dumpsters. The
Evasion lifestyle is emulated by many anarchists.

B. Eric McDhawvid

Eric McDavid, age 28, is an anarchist, known to friends and
associates within the anarchist movement by the alias, "p©.

McDavid maintains no permanent residence; rather, he lives a

3
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transient lifestyle, traveling often, by train-hopping and
hitchhiking, and living temporarily with friends and other
anarchists dispersed throughout the couﬁtry. Mcbhavid is
described by the C§ as extremely cautious of law enforcement
surveillance. He does not use a cellular telephone. He
maintains no permanent residence. He travels by unconventional
means. He communicates by email but frequently changes his email
address. McDavid has written an article on security matters that
he has shared with his family and other anarchists. The article
allegedly offers instruction on how to act during encounters with
law enforcement officers.

McDavid was identified by the CS as an attendee at the
August 2004 CrimethInc convergence in Des Moines, IA. The
convergence,'a meeting of anarchists from across the country, was'
meant to be a staglng point for travel to New York Clty, NY to
protest the Republlcan Natlonal Convention.

Beginning December 27, 2004, the FRI Joint Terrorism Task
Force (JTTF} investigated one arson and two attempted arsons by
the ELF. Notations spray-painted at the scene of the first
incident (an attempted arson at a housing development under
construction) included references to Evasion. Paint spilled on
the street at the same construction site spelled the letters,
"ELF". A letter sent to four Sacramento-area newspapers,
postmarked January 15, 2005, claimed responsibility for the first
two attempted arsons on behalf of the ELF. The bady of the
letter contained numerous references to anarchist thought. The
letter was signed, "Agent Emma Goldman and the CrimethInc Seniar

Officers of the Earth Liberation Front." Emma Goldman is a
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popular historical figure in the anarchist movement.

Based upon the apparent connection of the above-described
arson/attempted arsons to the anarchist movement and Eric
McDavid's'pérticipation in the anarchist movement, the JTTF
attempted to interview McDavid on February 24, 2005 at his
parents’' residence at 26800 Black 0Oak Ridge Road, Foresthill, CA
Agents made contact with Eileen McDavid, his mother, who said
that Eric McDavid was traveling at the time, and she had no way
to contact him. She said that his mode of transportation is
hitchhiking.

Eric McDhavid is an associate of Ryan Daniel Lewis, who was
convicted on October 14, 2005 on three counts of 18 U.5.C. §

844 (i) for separate arson incidents. McDavid reported to the CS
that' Lewis introduced him to anarchist thought. On Angust .31,
20b5, ?BI Joinf Terrorism Task Force (JTTF) Agents intérviewed
Lewis, who‘identified MéDavid in a digital photb recovered from‘
the hard drive of Lewis' computer. Lewis further advised that
McDavid was a friend and had intentions to travel by hitchhiking
to protests at destinations around the country, including the
Presidential Inauquration in Washington, DC.

In June 2005, Mcbavid traveled to Philadelphia, PA to
protest the 2005 Biotechnology Industry Organization{(BIO) annual
trade conference. The CS, who also attended the protest
activities, reported that McDavid offered training to other
anarchists on how to construct and use Molotov cocktails.
McDavid advocated violent protest and reported to the CS his
desire to kill a police officer, expressing his regret that he

was not involved in the physical altercation between protesters
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and police that resulted in one officer's death. McDavid also
told the CS5 that his friends in California were undex
investigation and that he had left in order to avoid becoming
involved.

In July 2005, McDavid traveled to Bloomington, IN to attend
a CrimethInc-organized convergence of anarchists. The
convergence offered entertainment, training, and an opportunity
to protest a nearby construction project. Shortly after the
event, McDavid spoke with the CS aboui his plans to engage in
criminal activity in support of his political beliefs. He
prefaced the disclosure of his plans by warning that if the CS
were working with law enforcement, he would kill him/her.
McDavid then described his plans to construct explosive devices
from household items and target various commerciai'andrgovernment-
facilities. He intended to follow a rgcipe for explosives found
in aﬁ anarchist cookbook.

McDavid identified his targets as banks, commercial trucks,
mountaintop removal projects in West Virginia, Communist party
offices, and a facility in Placerville, CA engaged in the genetic
engineering of trees. This last target has been identified by
law enforcement as the United States Forest Service .Institute of
Forest Genetics in Placerville, CA. McDavid explained that he
had not been inveolved in the arsons in Northern California for
which his friends, including Ryan lewis, were arrested. He
criticized Ryan Lewis for performing direct-action in close
proximity to an established residence.

In August 2005, McDavid arrived in Philadelphia, PA to

attend an anarchist convergence called Pointless Fest. There, he
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requested that the CS assist with his bombing plans by furnishing
a gas mask and a chemical equivalency list, which is a 1list that
translates chemicals necessary to build explosives into common
household items. McDavid also asked that the CS be present to
administer first aid, if necessary, while McDavid handled the
explosives. McDavid stated that he planned to commit the
bombings sometime in Spring 2006.

During Pointless Fest, McDavid invited Zachary Jenson and
Lauren Weiner to participate in his direct-action plans. Weiner
reported to the CS that she, Jenson, and McDavid intended to
spend the Christmas 2005 holiday with their respective families
and assemble in California in Winter 2005/2006 to make
preparations for a bombing campaign. Following the campaign,
they would go intq hidingf‘ Weinexr desc;ibed‘hér role as taking
care of the details and Jenson's role as writing the
communication(s) to claim respénsibility for the action(s).

C. Zacharv Jenson

Zachary Jenson, age 20, is an anarchist and close associate
of Eric McDavid. Jenson, who goes by the alias "0Ollie", is a
native of Monroe, WA, a suburb of Seattle, WA. He has
accompanied McDavid on travels to numerous destinations in the
United States, including the CrimethIne convergences in Des
Moines, IA and Bloomington, IN and the BIQO 2005 protest in
Philadelphia, PA. Jenson has no permanent residence, having
adopted a transient lifestyle similar to that described in the
anarchist book, Evasion.

Jenson maintains a personal web page at

wwiw.myspace.com/ollieaucksen. On the site, Jenson lists his
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occupation as a "wanderer/drug addict" and identifies one of his
favorite books as Days of War, Nights of Love by CrimethInc.
This book contains a chapter-by-chapter description of anarchist
values and objectives. Jenson's site also contains several
journal entries in which Jenson documents his interactions with
McDavid. Information from Jenson's journal entries corroborates
reporting from the CS regarding McDavid and Jenson's travels.
According to journal entries on this site and another website
Jenson maintains, www.livejournal.com/jancazbru, McDavid and
Jenson have traveled to Washington, Oregon, California, Nevada,
Texas, Oklahoma, Florida, Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Indiana,
Tennessee, Missouri, and Colorado since February 2005. Their
most common means of transportation was hitchhiking and train-
hopping. o
| | Jénsoﬁ; like~McDavid, is security conscious and is careful
not to disclose informétion on his website.regarding his
politically-motivated illegal activity. 1In one journal entry,
Jenson recounts illegal activity he conducted somewhere in the
San Francisco Bay area. A verbatim text of the entry, dated May
21, 2005, reads as follows:

what happened friday night cant be told

here online. it can only be told in person,

50 everyone back home will have to wait

because of security. imagine: music blaring,

kids running in the streets, dancing and shouting,

adrenaline surging, cops right behind us.

we ran fast. and you know what kind of tags

were left upon the concrete. yeah, you know.
The FBI JTTF has researched the above-described incident and

concluded that it took place at a protest in downtown Palo Alto,

CA. During this incident, dumpsters were moved and overturned in
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the streets, store windows were broken, and graffiti was sprayed
on walls and sidewalks. Photos of the protest obtained through a
public source depicts an individual spray-painting the phrase,
"pandas are sexy" onto a sidewalk. Jenson's web pages contain

numerous references to pandas and the "panda house"”, Jenson's

' name for his former residence at 20131 Forest Park Drive N.E.,

Shoreline, WA.

D. Lauren Weiper

Lauren Weiner, age 20, is an anarchist from Philadelphia, PA
who uses the aliases "Ren" and "Fireflie". She met Eric McDavid
and Zachary Jenson at the Rugust 2004 CrimethInc convergence in
Des Moines, IA and hosted the two at her home while they were in
Philadelphia, PA to protest the BIO 2005 trade conference.
Weiner favors violent protest. She was present at the June 21,
2605 protest in Philadelphia during which protesters assanlted a
Philadelphia pblice officer, who iater died. Weiner expressed
her support for the individuals who assaulted the officer. She
has also expressed her desire to conduct direct-action in the
Philadelphia area.

During September 24-25, 2005, Weiner attended protests in
Washington, DC of the World Bank. She also participated in skill
share classes with other anarchists to learn how to better
organize an anarchist collective and plan direct-action
campaigns.

IV. SELECTED EVENTS SUPPORTING PROBABLE CAUSE

I submit that the following events support a finding of

probable cause to believe that Eriec Mc David, Lauren Weiner, and

Zachary Jenson conspired to damage or destroy property by fire or
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explosive:

A. Reconnaissance of the USFS Institute for Forest Genetics

On Janunary 10, 2006, surveillance agents observed the CS and
subjects as they traveled to Auburn, CA. The subjects conducted
Internet research of potential targets. The CS reported via text
message to an FBI agent that after finishing their research, the
group intended to perform reconnaissance of the Nimbus Dam and
the “tree thing”. At approximately 1:37 p.m. that day, the car
containing the CS and subjécts arrived at the California
bPepartment of Fish and Game Region II Nimbus Fish Hatchery. At
approximately 3:23 p.m., the car was reported by surveillance
agents as parked outside the USFS Institute of Forest Genetics on
Carson Road in Placerville, CA. USFS agents followed their
movements as they entered the property and walked around. the
gfounds. The sﬁbjeéts wererrecorded dn video sﬁfveiilénce, and
one USFS agent reported‘that one subject signed the guest |
registry under a fictitious name. The subjects znd CS left the
facility at approximately 3:48 p.m. After they departed, McDavid
told the group that human casualties resulting from their actions
would be acceptable, according to a report from the CS.

B. Purchase of Bleach at Wal-Mart

On January 8, 2006, surveilllance agents observed the CS and
subjects as they traveled to various sites in Auburn, CA. During
their visit, the CS temporarily separated from the subjects and
met with an FBI agent. During this meeting, the C5 advised that
the group, among other things, intended to obtain materials to
make a homemade explosive device from various grocery and

hardware stores and begin preparing the chemicals to be used in
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the device on or about January 12, 2006 by following a recipe in
the book, Poor Man’s James Bond.

In conversations conducted in the Presence of the CS, and
observed by agents via consensuzl video and audio monitering, the
subjects planned a trip to San Francisco, CA for the following
day. They expected to meet one of Jenson's friends during the
trip. Jenson urged the group to create an zlibi for the meeting
so as to explain why they would be together. Weiner suggested
that they pose as farm workers. McDavid explained that they
would acquire materials for a device at some point during the
trip. Materials mentioned were potassium chloride, a hot plate,
and a car battery.

Agents observed Jenson and McDavid reading unknown
literature. . As they.read, they discussed bomb—making~materialS;.
McDavid appeared to read aloud some of the materlals needed for a
recipe he was follow1ng beaker, hot plate, water hydrometer,
potassium chloride, jugs, bottle, petroleum jelly, ammonia, and
iodine. He explained to the group that material from this recipe
would need to be dried. Jenson emphasized the need for a timer
on the device to afford the group time to egress from the target
location before detonation. McDavid suggested the need for a
one-hour delay. |

On January 11, 2006, surveillance agents observed the €5 and
subjects as they traveled to San Francisco, CA. On the return
trip, they stopped at a Wal-Mart store at 3661 Truxel Rd,
Sacramento, CA. There, according to surveillance video and a
copy of the store receipt, the subjects purchased several items,

including bleach and a car battery.
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C. The Subjects Cook Bleach and Further Discuss Their
Targets

On Januwary 12, 2006, the subjects visited several stores in
Auburn, CA, including a Kmart, Long’s Drug, and BelAir. McDavid
was observed carrying a plastic bag as he exited the Long’' s Drug
Store. The CS§ reported to an FBI agent via text message that the
subjects had purchased items specifically for use in producing
explosive materials. After they returned from shopping, they
spent approximately one and one half hours on the porch of 33070
Main Street cooking bleach. During this process, the glass bowl
containing the bleach broke. At which point, the group stopped
the process and returned inside the cabin.

While in the cabin, and in the presence of the CS5, agents
observed via consensual audio and video recording, the subjects
as they discussed targets. Jenson said he was concerned about
targeting four separate targets and suggested focusing on one.
His statement provoked a discussion among the group about what
facility to target. McDavid szid he wanted to target the USFS
Institute of Forest Genetics (“IFG”) because of its involvement
in genetic engineering. Weiner stated that she preferred to
target a facility that affects more people instead of something
remote. McDavid concluded that he is flexible and willing to
take suggestions from the group, that a cellular telephone tower
could be the target, but he wanted the IFG to represent a
fallback target. After being asked, Jenson responded that his
preferred target is a power station, Weiner's is a cellular
telephone tower. Weiner expressed her desire to create a state

of martial law and undermine corporations.
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When planning for the next day’s activities, they discussed
possibly testing an incendiary device at an unspecified remote
location. They also discussed purchasing glassware for heating
bieach. McDavid asked the CS if s/he had seen the white
crystals. He explained that if they had a bigger tray, they
would be able to produce more Crystals. The group agreed to
compose a list of materials to purchase the following day and to
separate into groups of two to make the purchase.

D. Purchase of Additional Materials from Kmart

On January 13, 2006, surveillance agents observed the
subjects and the CS in the Kmart on Bell Road in Auburn, CA. The
agents ocbserved the subjects, not the €S, carry bags of items
from the Kmart to the CS’s car. 1In a search subsequent to a
lawful arrest, agents determined that the subjécts had purchased
respirator masks, rubber gloves, bleach, glass cleaner,'and
giassware.

E. The “Burn Book”

On January 13, 2006, subsequent to his arrest, agents
discovered a pocket-sized notebook on the person of Eric McDawvid.
The book contained a hand-drawn diagram of what appeared to be
the grounds of the USFS IFG facility in Placerville, CA, and the
notebook also contained the address of the IFG. The notebook
also contained hand-drawn diagrams of what appeared to be pipe
bombs, as well as lists of ingredients for creating homemade
explosives. According to the C5, the subjects called the
notebook the “burn book” because they agreed to hurn it later.

V. CONCLUSION

Based on the facts set forth in this Affidavit, I contend
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that probable cause exists to charge Eric McDavid, Zachary
Jenson, and Lauren Weiner with conspiring to use fire or
explosives to damage property, in violation of Title 18 U.Ss.C.
§ B844(n).

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
United States of America that the foregoing is true and correct

Eo the best of my knowledge.

Special Agent
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Read and appreoved as. to form

\ i

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this,%Bth day of January, 2006
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http://www.sacbee.com/content/news/environment/story/l4116791p
-14946141c, html i
(registration required)

3 indicted in alleged eco~terror plot

By Denny walsh -- Bee Staff Writer

Published 2:15 am PST Thursday, January 26, 2006

Three people alleged to be part of an eco-terrorism movement were
indicted wednesday by a federal grand jury in sacramento on a charge of
conspiring to damage and destroy property by fire and an explosive.

Eric Tayler Mcpavid, 28; Zachary 0. lenson, 20; and Lauren weiner, 20,
are accused in the one-count indictment of plotting to blow up a u.s.
Forest Service genetics lab in Placerville, the Nimbus Dam and nearby
fish hatchery in Rancho Cordova, and cellular telephone towers and
electric power stations in unspecified locations.

whiTe it is not in the indictment, other court papers filed by the
government say the trio planned to publicly proclaim after the arson
campaign that it was carried out in the name of the Earth Liberation
Front, a movement advocating violent criminal acts against what its
followers believe are symbo%s of the destruction and exploitation of
the environment.

"Since 1997, estimates of damage inflicted by ELF (nationwide) run in
excess of $100 million," according to an FBI search warrant affidavit
filed in connection with the case.

. The defendants are scheduled to be arraigned today before u.s.
Magistrate Judge Gregory G. Hollows. ' '

The indictment replaces a criminal complaint with the same charge that
was filed against the three 10 days ago.

The¥ are seeking bail, which is strongiy opﬁosed by prosecutors.
Hollows is expected to rule by the end of the week on the bail issue.

"These three individuals planned to commit a number of dangerous and
destructive acts in our region, all in the name of the Earth Liberation
Front," U.5. Attorney McGregor Scott said Wednesday at a news
conference in the federal courthouse. "Because of the exceptional
investigative work of the FBI's Joint Terrorism Task Force and the
brave efforts of a confidential source, they were prevented from
carrying out their planned attacks."

scott described Mcbavid as the "instigator" of the plot to construct
and use explosive devices made with household items. McDavid recruited
the confidential source at an "anarchist convergence"” in July in
Bloomington, Ind., and Jenson and Weiner at a similar gathering a month
Tater in philadelphia, Scott said.

The three defendants were arrested Jan. 13 in Auburn in a shopping
center parking lot after purchasing items the FBI suspects were to
become bomb-malking materdials.

Three days earlier, FBI agents had watched the foursome allegedly scout
the Nimbus Dam and the forest genetics Tab.

"we will never really know how close we came to a big boom,”™ scott said.
The case is based on extensive electronic surveillance - hoth audioc and
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video - and on information from the paid FBI informant, who was warking
with the defendants and posing as an ELF sympathizer.

Much of their activity in the six days leading up to their arrests was
underwritten by the FBI without the inow]ed e of the defendants. The
undercover source, using government funds, bought items intended for
use in making an explosive device.

The FBI rented a cabin in bDutch Flat that the group used, although the
defendants thought their fourth partner rented it. The laptop computer
they used to research possible targets was an FBI computer furnished by
the source, court papers say.

scott noted that the indictment is the second time in a year a group of
young people have been charged in Sacramento federal court as Earth
Liberation Front followers bent on property destruction by arson in the
name ot the movement.

"I hope this Tatest indictment serves as a wake-up call to idealistic

young people who may be contemplating criminal action in furtherance of
a cause,”" Scott said.
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